; 2400 Mahan Dr.
' Tallahassee, FL 32308
Phone: (850) 521-0500

fbpe.org

Florida Engineers Management Corporation >

TO: The Honorable Kathleen Passidomo, President of the Florida Senate
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James Dawson, Public Member, FBPE

FROM: Zana Raybon, President
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

DATE: September 15, 2023
RE: Transmittal of Annual Report

In accordance with Section 471.038(3)(m), Florida Statutes, enclosed is the 2022-2023 Annual Report of
the Florida Engineers Management Corporation.

cc: w/attachment
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Safiya Brea, P.E., Vice Chair, FEMC
Barney Bishop, FEMC
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2022-2023 Annual Report
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

Introduction

Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, adopted by the legislature in 1997 as H433, created the
Florida Engineers Management Corporation (FEMC) for the purpose of providing administrative,
investigative, and prosecutorial services to the Florida Board of Professional Engineers (FBPE)
by contract with the Department of Business and Professional Regulation (DBPR). Section
471.038(3)(m), Florida Statutes, requires the Corporation to submit to the Secretary of the
Department of Business & Professional Regulation, the Florida Board of Professional Engineers,
and the Florida Legislature, on or before October 1 of each year, a report on the status of the
corporation, including but not limited to, information concerning the programs and funds that
have been transferred to the Corporation. That same section also requires certain specific
information regarding licenses and complaints handled by the Corporation. The following is the
text of that report.

Between July 1, 2022 and June 30, 2023, FEMC has performed the following:

e Administered 30 meetings of the FBPE and FBPE committees;

e Published 4 newsletters that were distributed to an average of 44,665 engineering
licensees and others;

e Hitarecord 658,976 users on the FBPE.org website during FY22-24 (a renewal period),
compared to 227,525 in FY21-22 (a non-renewal year) and 256,898 in FY20-21 (the
previous renewal period);

e Conducted 15 in-person and five virtual outreach presentations, reaching over 1,600
engineering students, interns, and professionals to discuss engineering exams,
professional licensure, and professional ethics during 14 engineering classes or groups, as
well as the Florida Engineering Society Annual Conference and the Florida Association of
County Engineers & Road Superintendents (FACERS) Annual Meeting; and staffed a table
at the Building Officials Association of Florida’s 2023 annual conference to answer
questions regarding engineering regulations, unlicensed activity, and the proper signing
and sealing of engineering documents.
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e Volunteered at the 2023 ASCE Southeast Student Conference/AISC Steel Bridge
Competition at the University of North Florida and at the 2023 Florida MathCounts State
Competition;

e Published regular posts to social media (Facebook and LinkedIn), with topics ranging
from PE licensure and licensure renewal in Florida to promoting STEM.

e Renewed 40,724 licenses for professional engineers;

e Issued 25 Certifications of Special Inspectors of threshold-type buildings;

e Received 4,354 applications for licensure;

e Approved 3,506 applications for licensure;

e Denied 186 applications for licensure;

e 50 days average time to issue a license;

e For NCEES CBT Principles and Practice examinations July 1, 2022, thru June 30, 2023, 849
passed the examination, 808 failed the examination. **

e For the CBT Fundamentals of Engineering examinations from July 1, 2022, thru June 30,
2023, 1,354 passed the examination, 1,279 failed the examination. ***

** FEMC allows for direct exam registration with NCEES, so applicants do not need to register with
FEMC. Due to an October 2019 statute change allowing for early examination, an applicant may
register with NCEES without prior Board-approval. FEMC has no way of knowing when the applicant
schedules to take the exam. The applicant has 12 months to take the exam anywhere in the US. The
applicant still must meet our licensure requirements in order for a license to be issued. NCEES has
transitioned all Principles and Practice (PE) Examinations to Computer-Based Testing (CBT). NCEES has
contracted with a third-party vendor to administer the exam. Some exams will be offered year-round
in the same manner as the Fundamentals Examination. Some exams will be offered only one day a
year.

*** In January 2014, NCEES moved to Computer-Based Testing for the Fundamentals Examination.
NCEES has contracted with a third-party vendor to administer the exam. FEMC allows for direct exam
registration with NCEES, so applicants do not need to register with FEMC. The applicant has 12
months to take the exam anywhere in the U.S. FEMC is only notified of who passes and who fails the
examination.

In support of the FBPE’s effort to enforce the engineer licensing law, FEMC accomplished the
following:

e Processed 208 complaints regarding engineering practice, of which 137 were found to
be legally sufficient;

e Filed 105 Administrative Complaints in cases where the Probable Cause Panel found
probable cause to believe a violation of the Engineering Practice Act had occurred;

e Filed 85 Final Orders with DBPR;

e Tried O cases at DOAH;

e Dismissed 5 cases after re-consideration by Probable Cause Panel;

e [ssued 5 Reprimands;



Florida Engineers Management Corporation 2400 Mahan Dr.

Page 3

Tallahassee, FL 32308
Phone: (850) 521-0500

Issued 2 Suspensions;

Issued 3 Probations;

Issued 2 Project Reviews;

Issued O License Restrictions;

Required 77 engineers to successfully complete a course in Engineering Professionalism
and Ethics;

Required 77 engineers to successfully complete the Board’s Study Guide on Laws and
Rules;

Imposed $26,769.95 in Administrative Costs;

Imposed $57,000.00 in Administrative Fines;

Received 2 Voluntarily Relinquishment;

Received 0 Voluntarily Inactivation;

Licenses Revoked 1;

Dismissed 0 case at Board Meetings;

Dismissed 25 cases with a finding of no probable cause;

Dismissed 16 with letter of guidance to engineers;

FBPE issued 91 Final Orders against Professional Engineers

Statutory Requirements:

In response to various requirements of Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, the following
attachments are provided:

Section 471.038, Florida Statutes
This is the enacting legislation for the Florida Engineers Management Corporation and
sets forth the requirements of FEMC.

Board Members and Organizations of the Corporation

Attached is a copy of the Board’s website home page, created by FEMC at fbpe.org, to
provide important news and information to the public and licensees. In addition to the
names of the members of the Florida Board of Professional Engineers, the FEMC
corporate directors, and its staff, the website also provides the most recent engineering
rules and laws, links by search function to DBPR’s current listing of registrants and
qualified engineering businesses, information on how to file a complaint, most frequently
asked questions, current applications for licensure, newsletters published by the Board,
Board meeting agendas and minutes, Board calendar for the year, and information on
continuing education.

e Contract

Section 471.038(3)(j), Florida Statutes, requires that FEMC operate on an annual contract
between DBPR and FEMC. Attached is a copy of the contract which is entitled
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“Agreement Between Florida Engineers Management Corporation and Department of
Business and Professional Regulation.”

e Charter and By-Laws
Section 471.038(3), F.S., requires approval of the Corporation’s articles of incorporation
and bylaws by the Department and FBPE.

e Annual Budget
Section 471.038(3)(j)1., F.S., requires submission of an annual budget that has been
approved by the FBPE and the DBPR. Attached please find a copy of the approved budget
for the fiscal year 2022-2023.

e Annual Certification
Section 471.038(3)(j)2., F.S., requires that FEMC be certified by the FBPE and the DBPR
that it is complying with the terms of the contract and in a manner consistent with the
goals and purposes of the Board and the best interest of the State. A copy of that
Certification is attached.

e Annual Financial and Compliance Audit
Section 471.038(3)(k), F.S., requires an annual finance and compliance audit of financial
accounts and records by the independent certified public accountant. The audit for the
period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 is attached.

For additional information concerning the Florida Engineers Management Corporation please
contact Zana Raybon, President, by telephone at 850-521-0500, or by email at
zraybon@fbpe.org.
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Select Year: 2023 WV

The 2023 Florida Statutes

Title XXXII Chapter 471 View Entire Chapter
REGULATION OF PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS ENGINEERING

471.038 Florida Engineers Management Corporation.—

(1) This section may be cited as the “Florida Engineers Management Corporation Act.”

(2) The purpose of this section is to create a public-private partnership by providing that a single nonprofit
corporation be established to provide administrative, investigative, and prosecutorial services to the board and
that no additional nonprofit corporation be created for these purposes.

(3) The Florida Engineers Management Corporation is created to provide administrative, investigative, and
prosecutorial services to the board in accordance with the provisions of chapter 455 and this chapter. The
management corporation may hire staff as necessary to carry out its functions. Such staff are not public employees
for the purposes of chapter 110 or chapter 112, except that the board of directors and the staff are subject to the
provisions of s. 112.061. The provisions of s. 768.28 apply to the management corporation, which is deemed to be a
corporation primarily acting as an instrumentality of the state, but which is not an agency within the meaning of s.
20.03(1). The management corporation shall:

(@) Be a Florida corporation not for profit, incorporated under the provisions of chapter 617.

(b) Provide administrative, investigative, and prosecutorial services to the board in accordance with the
provisions of chapter 455, this chapter, and the contract required by this section.

(c) Receive, hold, and administer property and make only prudent expenditures directly related to the
responsibilities of the board, and in accordance with the contract required by this section.

(d) Be approved by the board, and the department, to operate for the benefit of the board and in the best
interest of the state.

(e) Operate under a fiscal year that begins on July 1 of each year and ends on June 30 of the following year.

(f) Have a seven-member board of directors, five of whom are to be appointed by the board and must be
registrants regulated by the board and two of whom are to be appointed by the secretary and must be laypersons
not regulated by the board. All appointments shall be for 4-year terms. No member shall serve more than two
consecutive terms. Failure to attend three consecutive meetings shall be deemed a resignation from the board, and
the vacancy shall be filled by a new appointment.

(g) Select its officers in accordance with its bylaws. The members of the board of directors who were
appointed by the board may be removed by the board.

(h) Select the president of the management corporation, who shall also serve as executive director to the
board, subject to approval of the board.

(i) Use a portion of the interest derived from the management corporation account to offset the costs
associated with the use of credit cards for payment of fees by applicants or licensees.

(j) Operate under a written contract with the department which is approved by the board. The contract must
provide for, but is not limited to:

1. Submission by the management corporation of an annual budget that complies with board rules for approval
by the board and the department.

2. Annual certification by the board and the department that the management corporation is complying with
the terms of the contract in a manner consistent with the goals and purposes of the board and in the best interest
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of the state. This certification must be reported in the board’s minutes. The contract must also provide for
methods and mechanisms to resolve any situation in which the certification process determines noncompliance.

3. Funding of the management corporation through appropriations allocated to the regulation of professional
engineers from the Professional Regulation Trust Fund.

4. The reversion to the board, or the state if the board ceases to exist, of moneys, records, data, and property
held in trust by the management corporation for the benefit of the board, if the management corporation is no
longer approved to operate for the board or the board ceases to exist. All records and data in a computerized
database shall be returned to the department in a form that is compatible with the computerized database of the
department.

5. The securing and maintaining by the management corporation, during the term of the contract and for all
acts performed during the term of the contract, of all liability insurance coverages in an amount to be approved by
the board to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the management corporation and its officers and employees,
the department and its employees, and the state against all claims arising from state and federal laws. Such
insurance coverage must be with insurers qualified and doing business in the state. The management corporation
must provide proof of insurance to the department. The department and its employees and the state are exempt
from and are not liable for any sum of money which represents a deductible, which sums shall be the sole
responsibility of the management corporation. Violation of this subparagraph shall be grounds for terminating the
contract.

6. Payment by the management corporation, out of its allocated budget, to the department of all costs of
representation by the board counsel, including salary and benefits, travel, and any other compensation
traditionally paid by the department to other board counsel.

7. Payment by the management corporation, out of its allocated budget, to the department of all costs
incurred by the management corporation or the board for the Division of Administrative Hearings of the
Department of Management Services and any other cost for utilization of these state services.

8. Payment by the management corporation, out of its allocated budget, to the department of reasonable costs
associated with the contract monitor.

(k) Provide for an annual financial audit of its financial accounts and records by an independent certified public
accountant. The annual audit report shall include a management letter in accordance with s. 11.45 and a detailed
supplemental schedule of expenditures for each expenditure category. The annual audit report must be submitted
to the board, the department, and the Auditor General for review.

() Provide for persons not employed by the corporation who are charged with the responsibility of receiving
and depositing fee and fine revenues to have a faithful performance bond in such an amount and according to such
terms as shall be determined in the contract.

(m) Submit to the secretary, the board, and the Legislature, on or before October 1 of each year, a report on
the status of the corporation which includes, but is not limited to, information concerning the programs and funds
that have been transferred to the corporation. The report must include: the number of license applications
received; the number approved and denied and the number of licenses issued; the number of examinations
administered and the number of applicants who passed or failed the examination; the number of complaints
received; the number determined to be legally sufficient; the number dismissed; the number determined to have
probable cause; the number of administrative complaints issued and the status of the complaints; and the number
and nature of disciplinary actions taken by the board.

(n) Develop and submit to the department, performance standards and measurable outcomes for the board to
adopt by rule in order to facilitate efficient and cost-effective regulation.

(4) The management corporation may not exercise any authority specifically assigned to the board under
chapter 455 or this chapter, including determining probable cause to pursue disciplinary action against a licensee,
taking final action on license applications or in disciplinary cases, or adopting administrative rules under chapter
120.

(5) Notwithstanding ss. 455.228 and 455.2281, the duties and authority of the department to receive
complaints and to investigate and deter the unlicensed practice of engineering are delegated to the board. The
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board may use funds of the Board of Professional Engineers in the unlicensed activity account established under s.
455.2281 to perform the duties relating to unlicensed activity.

(6) The department shall retain the independent authority to open or investigate any cases or complaints, as
necessary to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. In addition, the department may request that the
management corporation prosecute such cases and shall retain sole authority to issue emergency suspension or
restriction orders pursuant to s. 120.60.

(7) Management corporation records are public records subject to the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a),
Art. | of the State Constitution; however, public records exemptions set forth in ss. 455.217 and 455.229 for records
created or maintained by the department shall apply to records created or maintained by the management
corporation. In addition, all meetings of the board of directors are open to the public in accordance with s. 286.011
and s. 24(b), Art. | of the State Constitution. The exemptions set forth in s. 455.225, relating to complaints and
information obtained pursuant to an investigation by the department, shall apply to such records created or
obtained by the management corporation only until an investigation ceases to be active. For the purposes of this
subsection, an investigation is considered active so long as the management corporation or any law enforcement or
administrative agency is proceeding with reasonable dispatch and has a reasonable, good faith belief that it may
lead to the filing of administrative, civil, or criminal proceedings. An investigation ceases to be active when the
case is dismissed prior to a finding of probable cause and the board has not exercised its option to pursue the case
or 10 days after the board makes a determination regarding probable cause. All information, records, and
transcriptions regarding a complaint that has been determined to be legally sufficient to state a claim within the
jurisdiction of the board become available to the public when the investigation ceases to be active, except
information that is otherwise confidential or exempt from s. 119.07(1). However, in response to an inquiry about
the licensure status of an individual, the management corporation shall disclose the existence of an active
investigation if the nature of the violation under investigation involves the potential for substantial physical or
financial harm to the public. The board shall designate by rule those violations that involve the potential for
substantial physical or financial harm. The department and the board shall have access to all records of the
management corporation, as necessary to exercise their authority to approve and supervise the contract.

(8) The management corporation is the sole source and depository for the records of the board, including all
historical information and records. The management corporation shall maintain those records in accordance with
the guidelines of the Department of State and shall not destroy any records prior to the limits imposed by the
Department of State.

(9) The board shall provide by rule for the procedures the management corporation must follow to ensure that
all licensure examinations are secure while under the responsibility of the management corporation and that there

is an appropriate level of monitoring during the licensure examinations.
History.—ss. 2, 5, ch. 97-312; s. 112, ch. 98-166; s. 173, ch. 2000-160; ss. 1, 2, ch. 2000-372; s. 121, ch. 2001-266; s. 5, ch. 2003-293; s.
104, ch. 2023-8.
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION CORE CONTRACT
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7. Compliance with Statutes, Rules and Regulations. In performing its obligations under this contract, the Contractor shall without
exception be aware of any compliance with State and Federal laws, rules and regulations relating to its performance under this contract,
including but not limited to those described in Section 37 of this contract,
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h.  Contracts Funded with Federal or State Assistance, Contractor Requirements:

1.  The Cont r shall provide a financial and compliance audit to the Department as specified in Attachment __ 4

(Financia
Com
2,
3.
F.S., and pe the required and comp tsin
and OMB Ci A-133, and/ 7F.S., as and
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i.  Documentation. To maintain separate accounting of revenues and expenditures of funds under this contract and
each CSFA or CFDA number identified on Exhibit 1 attached hereto in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and procedures.

al incu ices, canceled checks, payroll
h exp
pplicable to expenditures of State funds including, but not limited
to, the Reference Guide for State Expendi
2) Reasonable; and
3) Necessary in order for the recipient or subrecipient to fulfill its obligations under this contract.
[The o d nissu rtment and/or the State Chief Financial Officer and
the p t vy any re

ii. Pursuanttos. 215.971, F.S., the Contractor shall administer state financial assistance received as follows:
1) ow sulting from ob incu during the tp d;
2) ed has been adva paid e Contract to

3) Funds paid by the Department in excess of the amount to which the Contractor is entitled under the terms and
conditions of this contract shall be refunded to the Department within 45 days of the earlier of the expiration of,
or termination of, this contract.

ed
for which th may erminate this contract, and may result in a civil action being filed against the
or pursuant 119. .
ins ing r Florida's Law,
ieta for nformation i e
c., in paper or electronic form) submitted in connection with this
ion is submitted in accordance with Section 30.b.
including docume Con , may
marked as trade s with n
the
Department is authorized to produce the records sought withou
d. rsh sible for ng its that eac every on of the redactions of trade secret
info mpt i ion and unde da's Pub cords
e. Subsection 215.985(16), F.S., requires the State’s Chief Financial Officer to provide public access to a State contract
contract Con d in such time, the Con
disclosu eap c
f.  The Contractor shall comply with the following requirements of section 119.0701, F.S.
artment to perform the service.
lic re the Depa with uested
with le time at that the cost
d by law.
tial and t rd requi ts are not
of the ¢ t g f the ct if the
ment.

o the Department all public records in possession of the Contractor
epartment to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all
ct, on or shall public records
dis re irement eps and



maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for
retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Department, upon request from the
Department’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the

Department.

If the Contractor has questions regarding the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the
Contractor’s duty to provide public records relating to this contract, contact the custodian of public

records at:
DBPR Public Records Coordinator
2601 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-1040
Telephone: 850-717-1185
Email:

31. Data rity. ntracts ring Contractor to or use of D in ion t s or software, the

Cont shall with th rmation technol data security s din t
32. Financial Penalties for Failure to Take Corrective Action.

a. p 01, FAC. ctive action plans may be

re n contract. ies may be imposed for

fa a )

n

c. Non involv ce shall t in the imposition nt( ) Ity. Noncompliance as

aresulto ble pe ive task Il result in the imp pe n ) penaity.

d. e be as financi - In the event of nonpayment the

Dep d of the by the

33. The following termination provisions apply to this Contract:

contract terminated by the Department for cause. Termination
the Contractor.
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letion of such s shall requirement for completion of the negotiation process. This
ion shall not li rights ion 33.

35. Other Terms

and sent by U.S. Po ery
notice shall be sent ctor
ddress contained in this contract.
b. p inall pects
ina o inFl a
sha n
c. PRIDE. Inacco ce with ion .51 ,F.S., product or service required for the performance of this contract is
certified by or is avail from P Re lita Indust and sified Enterprises, Inc. (PRIDE) and has been approved in
accordance with Section 946.515(2), F.S., the following statement s:

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT ANY ARTICLES WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF , OR REQUIRED TO

OR THIS AGENCY INSOFAR AS DEALINGS WITH SUCH
CORPORATION ARE CONCERNED.

Additional information about PRIDE and the products it offers is available at http://iwww.pride-enterprises.org.

d. RE In with 413.036(3), F.S., if a product or required for the mance of this contract is
on the p ent edp to Section 413.035(2), F.S., the g statement app

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT ANY ARTICLES THAT ARE THE SUBJECT OF, OR REQUIRED TO
CARRY OUT, THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE PURCHASED FROM A NONPROFIT AGENCY FOR THE BLIND OR FOR THE
SEVERELY HANDICAPPED THAT IS QUALIFIED PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 413, F.S., IN THE SAME MANNER AND UNDER
THE SA URES SET FORTHIN S (1) AND (2), F.S., AND FOR PURPOSES OF THIS CONTRACT
THE PE OR OTHER BUSINESS ING OUT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE
DEEMED TO BE SUBSTITUTED FOR THIS STATE AGENCY INSOFAR AS DEALINGS WITH SUCH QUALIFIED NONPROFIT
AGENCY ARE CONCERNED.

Additional information about the designated nonprofit agency and the products it offers is available at

e. The Contractor shall procure any recycled products or materials, which are the subject of or are required to carry out this
contract, in accordance with the provisions of section 403.7065, F.S.

teran Business Enterprise participant and must be sent to the

tsc ct ma . The of Suppl y 48 can in furnishing nam uvalified
sine The rtment ity Busin n be d at 717-1370 and will with any
g ot
y as
a on a
h. There s s, than thos rein contract shall supersede
all previous ti or verbal or n th
i. Ifany term or prov this contractis | Ily determined unlawful or unenforceable, the remainder of this contract shall
remain in full force and nd suchtermor  vision shall be stricken.

ts

all be without further payment, as the contract payments received
nce.

k. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of the documents, the documents shall be interpreted in the following order of
precedence:

1. Attachment | and other attachments, if any;

2. Any documents incorporated into any attachment by reference;

3. This Core Contract;

4. Any documents incorporated into this Core Contract by reference.

36. Modifications. Modifications of provisions of this contract shall be valid only when they have been reduced to a written amendment

tal doilar may be adju a o refl rice level
been est through the ti cess

i ents of lat d Funding So . A in 7 of contract, tractor is

i h the fol ire as applicable pe un cont The Co
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acknowledges that it is independently responsible for investigeting and compiying with all State and Federal laws, rules and
regulations relating to its performance under this contract and that the below is only a sample of the State and Federal laws, rules
and regulations that may govem its performance under this contract.

a. Federal Law

Unauthorized aliens shall not be employed. The Department shall consider the employment of unauthorized allens a violation
of section 274A(a) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (8 U.S.C. 1324 a) and section 101 of the !mmigration Reform and
Control Act of 19868. Such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this contract by the Department.

Pursuant to Executive Order 11-1186, signed on January 4, 2011, the Department shall require the Contractor to:

e  Utilize the U.S. Depariment of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment aligibility of all new
efnployees hired by the Contractor during the contract term: and

¢ Include in all subcontracts under this contract, the requirement that subcontractors performing work or providing services
pursuant to this contract utilize the E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the
subcontractor during the term of the subconiract.

E-Verify is an Intemet-based system that allows an employer, using information reported on an smployae's Form -9,
Employment Eligibility Verification, to determine the eligibitity of all new employees hired to work in the United States. There is
no charge to employers to use E-Verify. The Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system can be found at

b. Clvil Rights Requiremants. In accordance with Titte VII of tha Clvil Rights Act of 1864, the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1980, or the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1892, as applicable the Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee (or applicant
for employment) in the performance of this contract because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disabiiity, age, pregnancy, or
marital status. Further, the Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any applicant, client, or employae in service delivery or
benefits in connection with any of Its programs and activities in accordance with 45 CFR 80, 83, 84, 90, and 91, Title V! of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, or the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, as applicable and DBPR Policy # 1002-0022, Uniawful Discrimination and
Harassment. These requirements shall apply to all contractors, subcontractors, subgrantees or others with whom it arranges to
provide services or benefils to clients or employaes in connection with its programs and activities. The Contractor shall complete the
Civii Rights Compliance Checklist in accordance with DBPR Policy # 1002-0022, Unlawiful Discrimination and Harassment, and 45
CFR 80. This is required of all Contractors that have fifteen (15) or more employees.

c. Use of Funds for Lobbying Prohibited. The Contractor shall comply with the provigions of sections 11.062 and 216.347, F.S.,
which prohibit the expenditure of contract funds for the purpose of lobbying the Legisiature, judicial branch, or a state agency.

d. Public Enfity Crime and Discriminatory Contractors. Pursuant to sections 287,133 and 287.134, F.S., the follawing
restrictions are placed on the abllity of persons placed an the convicted vendor list or the discriminatory vendor list. When a person
or affiliate has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity ctime, or an entity or afflliate has
been placed on the discriminatory vendor list, such person, entity or affiliaie may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to
provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the
construction or the repair of a public bullding or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a
public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any
public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity; provided, however, that the prohibition on persons or affillates
placed on the convicted vendor shall be limited to business in excess of the threshold amount provided in section 287.017, F.S., for
CATEGORY TWO ($35,000) for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

e. Whistieblower's Act Requirements. In accordance with subsection 112.3187(2), F.S., the Contractor and its subcontractors
shall not retaliate against an employee for reporting violations of law, rule, or regulation that creates substantist and specific danger
to the public's health, safety, or welfare to an appropriate agency. Furthermore, agencies or independent contractors shalt not
retaliate against any person who discloses information to an appropriate agency alleging improper use of govemmental office, gross
waste of funds, or any other abuse or gross neglect of duty on the part of an agency, public officer, or employse. The Contractor and
any subcontractor shall inform its employees that they and other persons may file a complaint with the Office of Chief Inspector
General, Agency Inspector General, the Florida Commission on Human Relations, or the Whistle-blower's Hotline number at 1-800-
543-5353.

By slgning this contract, the parties agree that they have read and agree to the entlre contract, as described in Section 8.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 51 page contract to be executed by thelr undersigned officials as duly
authorized.

CONTRACTOR: FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL,
CORPORATION (FEMC) REGULATION

Qulu
Slgnature: Signature: QIV
Print/Type PrintType g <
Name: Art Nordlinger, PE Name: Julle |. Brown
Title: Board Chalrman Title: Secretary

Date: é_’/?l'/ / z_// Date: _OLL{TI;; J - \
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STATE AGENCY 29 DIGIT FLAIR CODE: 79-50-2-547001-79050100-00-108020-00 79-50-2-547 01-79050100-00-100399-00

Federal Tax ID # (or SSN): F593464045002 Provider Fiscal Year Ending Date: 06/30.
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Attachment 1
SCOPE OF WORK

Contract # 21-00001

This Agreement is made and entered into between Florida Engineers Management Corporation, a not for
profit Florida Corporation hereinafter referred to as “FEMC”, and the Department of Business and
Professional Regulation, herein after referred to as “Department”, to set forth their mutual duties and
responsibilities pursuant to Section 471.038, Florida Statutes.

l. Renewal

Subsection 287.057(13), F.S., provides that contracts for commodities or contractual services may be
renewed on a yearly basis for a period of up to three (3) years after the initial contract, or for a
period no longer than the term of the original contract, whichever period is longer, subject to the
availability of funds, satisfactory performance evaluations by the Department, and at the discretion
of the Department. This contract may be renewed for a period not to exceed the original term of this
contract, subject to annual funding appropriation by the Florida legislature.

FEMC was created pursuant to Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, to provide administrative,
investigative and prosecutorial services to the Florida Board of Professional Engineers (“FBPE”) in
accordance with the provisions of Chapters 455 and 471, Florida Statutes. Section 471.038, Florida
Statutes, requires that FEMC operate under a written contract with the Department, which is to be
approved by the FBPR, to provide the above outlined services.

The Department shall assign a Contract Manager who shall ensure compliance with this Agreement
and the provisions of Chapters 455 and 471, Florida Statutes. The Contract Manager shall act as a
liaison between the Department and FEMC.

Upon request, FEMC shall allow the Contract Manager complete and immediate access to all data
and records maintained by FEMC, including by not limited to the following:

e All documents to be presen\ted to the Probable Cause Panel, including an Agenda, at
the same time the materials are provided to the Panel members.
¢ All documents to be presented to the FBPE for final action, at the same time the
materials are provided to the board members.
FEMC shall notify the Contract Manager of the following:

Significant changes in management personnel;
® Significant communications with the Office of the Governor;
Appellate action taken by a party in any disciplinary matter. FEMC is responsible for
defending such appeals, but FEMC shall provide the initial brief and an outline of the
proposed response and the supporting case law, to the Department’s appellate
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attorney and the Contract Monitor, 48 hours prior to its submission of any
responsive brief.
¢ Information that may be the basis for an emergency suspension or restriction of
license or be of such a nature that FEMC believes it warrants referral for criminal
prosecution. The Department is solely responsible for the issuance of any emergency
suspension orders.
FEMC shall respond to requests from the Contract Manager within seven (7) days or sooner if

requested.
v
FEMC shall select the President of the management corporation, who shall also serve as the
Executive Director of the Board (“ED”) subject to approval of the FBPE in accordarice with Section
455.203(2), Florida Statutes. The Department shall be notified of the progress of any selection
process for a President and be given an opportunity to comment on FEMC’s potential selection.
Vv

FEMC's services shall apply to all licenses under the jurisdiction of the FBPE, including special
inspectors of threshold buildings. It is FEMC’s responsibility to render services in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 119 (public records), Chapter 286 (open meetings), and 120 (administrative
procedures), Florida Statutes, as limited by Chapters 455 and 471, Florida Statutes.

FEMC shall operate under a fiscal year that begins on July 1 and ends at midnight EDST on June 30 of
each fiscal year.

A.

Administrative services to be provided to the FBPE are the following:
Performing agency clerk functions;

Preparing required reports;
® Responding to requests for public records pursuant to Florida law;
Processing applications for licensure;
Issuing initial license and notices of renewal;
Renewing licenses;
Collecting fees;
e Training new board members;
Maintaining files;
Maintaining inventory of FEMC property;
® Providing telecommunications systems;
Providing a computer and licensing system pursuant to Section X1V, Technology;
Providing examination services;
Maintaining licensure records;
Providing official certificates;
Providing staff support services to the FBPE;
Assisting as needed in rule promulgation;
Scheduling, noticing, and planning FBPE meetings;
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Preparing FBPE agenda content including rulemaking, disciplinary licensing and other
official action of the FBPE relative to the police powers of the State of Florida
exercised through the FBPE;
Supporting the conduct of FBPE meetings;

® Recording and preparing minutes of the FBPE meetings;
Providing support to the probable cause panel; and
Maintaining confidentiality of records as required by law.

Licensure services to be provided to the FBPE are the following:

Maintain licensure records, including historical licensure data and records of address
changes, name changes and other licensure status changes;
Issue initial licenses subsequent to the FBPE’s determination of eligibility for
licensure, and provide official certification of licensure records in its custody;

* Issue renewal licenses to active and inactive engineers, and special inspectors of
threshold buildings, based on information given to FEMC by the FBPE;
Ensure compliance with continuing education requirements, in accordance with
Sections 471.017, 471.0195, and 553.841, Florida Statutes.
Provide renewal notices and pending cancellations of a license as required in Section
455.273, Florida Statutes; and
Maintain and provide licensing information to licensees, prospective licensees and
the public consistent with Florida and applicable federal law.

FEMC shall use the Department’s licensure management system (Versa: Regulation) until
such time as FEMC is authorized to develop and implement its own licensure management
system. Both parties agree that information entered into Versa: Regulation may require the
Department’s assistance to retrieve. The Department will make all efforts to provide the
information to FEMC in a timely manner. Both parties acknowledge that the use of the Versa:
Regulation system allows for shared information. Both parties agree that certain information
is required to remain confidential under Chapter 455 and Chapter 119, Florida Statutes,
including but not limited to social security numbers, unless otherwise provided by law, and
complaint and investigations information as provided under Section 455.225(10) and
471.038(7), Florida Statutes.

All applications, licensure, disciplinary, and renewal services shall utilize the Versa:
Regulation system. The Department shall take full responsibility and liability for the security
of records and data submitted by FEMC to the Versa: Regulation system. The Department
shall make the Versa: Regulation system available to FEMC staff at all times that it is
available to Department staff. All maintenance and support of the Versa: Regulation system
will be performed by the Department.

Test-related services to be provided to the FBPE are the following:

Provide to FBPE complete files of all applications of candidates seeking licensure;
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* Administer the examination provided by the National Council of Examinations for
Engineers and Surveyors (NCEES), in accordance with Rule 61G15-21.001, Florida
Administrative Code;

® Ensure examination security during the transportation of examinations and
overnight storage examinations;

Ensure that sites are available to hold the examination, and ensure that there is an
appropriate level of monitoring during the examination;

Ensure that examination results are reported to the candidates;

Ensure the preparation and administration of the examinations in an applicant’s
native language if necessary pursuant to Section 455.218, Florida Statutes, and
collect the necessary costs in the event it is determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction that the FBPE is required to have the examinations translated;

Provide for examination of foreign-trained professionals pursuant to Section
455.218, Florida Statutes, if required by a court of competent jurisdiction;

¢ Ensure necessary special accommodations including, but not limited to, compliance
with Chapter 553, Part II, Florida Statutes, and Federal ADA requirements and
religious considerations;

Maintain and monitor a contract with a national testing vendor for the engineering
examinations as required by Chapter 471, Florida Statutes, and as approved by the
FBPE; and

Ensure the adequacy of the examinations, the maintenance of examination records,
and the compliance with all testing requirements of Section 455.217, Florida
Statutes.

Prosecutorial services to be provided for both licensed and unlicensed activity are the
following:
Coordinate with investigators;

® Review and take appropriate action on complaints;
* Prepare cases for presentation to probable cause panel;
Prepare administrative complaints, notices of noncompliance and citations;
Prosecute complaints at disciplinary hearings;
® Prosecute appeals;
Maintain complaint database in Versa: Regulation system;
Report alleged criminal violations to the Department and appropriate authorities;
® Receive requests from the Department for the prosecution of cases opened and
investigated by the Department;
® Report any action that may be considered for emergency suspension or restriction of
practice to the Department for review and possible action;
Review disciplinary guidelines; and
® Provide prosecutorial services at mediations.

FEMC must file a copy of all administrative complaints, final orders and notices of appeal
(filed by any party) with the Department’s Agency Clerk as soon as is practicable.
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Investigative services to be provided for both licensed and unlicensed activity are the
following:

Receive complaints;
Interview complainants;
Interview witnesses;
Issue subpoenas;
* Interview subjects of complaints;
Take sworn statements;
Compile documentary evidence;
® Prepare investigative reports;
Coordinate with prosecutors;
® Hire experts when necessary;
Testify at hearings;
¢ Coordinate investigative activities with appropriate regulatory and law enforcement
agencies; and
Report any action that may be considered for emergency suspension or emergency
restriction of practice to the Department for review and possible action.

F.

1. Except when providing those prosecutorial and investigative services set forth in this
Agreement, FEMC shall not exercise the police powers inherent in the Department
and the FBPE under Chapters 455 and 471, Florida Statutes, including determining
probable cause to pursue disciplinary action against a licensee, taking final action on
license applications or in disciplinary cases, or adopting administrative rules under
Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. Prosecutorial servicing shall only be executed in the
name of FBPE.

2. The responsibility for the supervision of this Agreement remains solely with the
FBPE.

3. FEMC shall not perform any activities related to rulemaking, disciplinary, licensing
and other official actions of the FBPE, except that FEMC staff may process the
necessary paperwork for these activities at the direction of the FBPE.

4. Lobbying activities, in accordance with Section 216.347, Florida Statutes

5. FEMC shall not issue emergency suspension or restriction orders.

G.

FEMC shall develop corrective plans to respond to deficiencies that result in noncompliance
with performance standard provisions of Rule 61G15-37.001, Florida Administrative Code, or
that result in noncompliance with this Agreement as determined by the Contract Monitor.

A corrective plan must include:
A description of the deficiency;

The impact of the deficiency;
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An action plan to correct the deficiency;

The responsible individuals to implement the action plan;

A time line for implementing the action plan that is consistent with the severity of
the deficiency; and

The estimated cost of implementing the corrective plan

The corrective plan must be submitted electronically to the Contract Manager within seven
(7) business days of a request by the Contract Manager and with the Quarterly report, unless
more time has been requested by the FEMC and approved by the Contract Manager. The
Department reserves the right to determine the efficacy of corrective action plans submitted

by the FEMC.
VL
FEMC shall maintain documentation evidencing performance of its duties under this Agreement.
Documentation showing the following must be maintained:

A. Compliance with performance standards specified in Rule 61G15-37.001, Florida
Administrative Code;

B. Action taken on requests from the Contract Monitor, per Section IV, Contract Monitor, of
this Agreement.

C. Information related to disciplinary actions;

Action taken regarding the failure of FEMC to comply with any provision of the Agreement;

E. Legal cases in which FEMC has not been the prevailing party, to include copies of final orders
and specify cases where attorney fees have been awarded;

F. Establishment and implementation of corrective plans as required by Section VI (G.) of this
Agreement;

G. Expenditures and cash balances;

H. Actual and projected monthly expenditures;

I Long-range estimates of the revenue required to carry out all provisions of law relating to
the regulation of the profession, for a five year period as required in Sections 455.204 and
455.219 of the Florida Statutes; and

J. Information related to licensure.

VII.

The following must be received timely and accepted by the Contract Manager:

A.
FEMC shall provide to the Contract Monitor, by the 15™ day of each month or the
closest business day after the 15" if the 15" falls on a weekend or a holiday, a
spreadsheet report of all actual and projected expenditures for the contract period.
The spreadsheet will be in a format approved by the Department.

B.
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FEMC shall provide an electronic quarterly report, thirty (30) days after the close of
each quarter, to the Contract Monitor and the FEMC Board of Directors, including
the following:

1.

DBPR Core Contract - Revised 03/20/2019

The status of the performance standards adopted by Rule 61G15-37.001,
Florida Administrative Code.

Compliance with priority referrals from the Contract Monitor, per Section IV,
Contract Monitor, of this agreement.

Information regarding disciplinary actions as follows:

a. Alist and status of all complaints made during this Agreement (open
and closed, licensed and unlicensed). Status information should
include:

e The name of the complainant;

¢ The name and license number of subject;

e The date of the complaint;

e The alleged violation;

¢ The last action taken; and

* The next appropriate action recommended

b. Alist of all cases FEMC closed as legally insufficient since the last
report;

C. Alist showing the status of compliance with all final orders with
pending provisions; and

d. Alist of all cases where the alleged violation is for unlicensed activity
and the subject also holds a license with another profession within
the Department.

Information regarding the failure of FEMC to comply with any provision of
the Agreement.

A list of all legal cases where FEMC has not been the prevailing party. The list
must include copies of final orders and specify cases where attorney fees
have been awarded.

Corrective plans as required by Section VI (G.) of this Agreement.

A detailed report of expenditures and cash balance, including information
required by Section VIl (G.) of this Agreement.

Long-range estimates of revenue, as required by this Agreement (to be
provided in the first quarterly report).

A report which details the following information for the last completed
quarter, with disciplinary information reported distinctly for licensed and
unlicensed activity:

® Number of license renewals;

e Number of license applications received;

® Number of licenses approved and denied;

® Number of licenses issued;

® Average time required to issue a license;

® Number of complaints received;

®* Number of complaints determined to be legally sufficient;

® Number of complaints dismissed;
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Number of complaints determined to have probable cause;
Number of administrative complaints issued and the status of the
complaints; and

Number and nature of disciplinary actions taken by the FBPE.

On or before October 1, of each year (2021-2025), in accordance with Section
471.038(3)(m), Florida Statutes, FEMC shall submit to the Secretary of the Department,
the FBPE and the Legislature, a report on the status of FEMC. The report must include the
following information, reported for the fiscal year ending June 30" of each year:

Programs and funds that have been transferred to FEMC;
Number of license renewals;
* Number of license applications received;
* Number approved, denied and issued licenses;
Average time required to issue a license;
Number of examinations administered and the number of applicants
who passed or failed the examination.

* Number of complaints received, together with the number of
complaints determined to be legally sufficient, how many were
dismissed, how many were determined to have probable cause;
Number of administrative complaints issued and the status of the
administrative complaints;

Number and nature of the disciplinary actions taken by the FBPE.
These disciplinary numbers shall be distinct for licensed and
unlicensed activity.

On our before October 1* of each year in accordance with Section 471.038(3)(j)2.,
F.S., FBPE and the Department shall review the performance of FEMC under the
contract for each year ending June 30" (2021-2025). If it is determined that FEMC
performed under that Agreement in a manner that is consistent with the goals and
purposes of FBPE an in the best interest of the State, FBPE and the Department shall
certify such. This certification shall be recorded in the FBPE minutes. Should the
Department fail to certify FEMC by the aforementioned deadlines, FEMC shall be
deemed certified. Upon a determination made by the FBPE and the Department at
any time during the term of the Agreement that FEMC no longer operates for benefit
of the FBPE and in the best interest of the State, all monies and property held in trust
by FEMC shall revert to the FBPE, or the State if the FBPE ceases to exist.
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Evidence of FEMC'’s engagement of an independent certified public accountant to
conduct an audit as required by this Agreement shall be provided to the Department
no later than October 1% of each year.

P of liability insurance and a man as required by Section
4 38(3)(j)5, Florida Statutes, sAg

On or before September 15" of each year (2021-2025), FEMC shall submit an Agency
Litigation Inventory Schedule, using the format shown in Attachment 6.

On or before June 1% of each year, EMC shall submit a proposed budget for Grants
and Aid and Proposed Budget for Unlicensed Activity for Fiscal Year 2021-2022,
2022-2023, 2023-2024, and 2024-2025, which shall be attached hereto collectively
as Attachment 7, Proposed Budget.

A change in a budget line item above the approved budgeted amount of $15,000 or
15%, whichever is lesser, shall be allowed without any prior approval by the
Department. The Department shall be notified in writing at the time of any such
budget change.

If FEMC determines that a required change in the budget line item is estimated to be
greater than $15,000 or 15%, or if the new budget line item needs to be added or an
existing item needs to be deleted from the approved Proposed Budget, FEMC shall
submit a request for a budget amendment to the Department fourteen (14) business
days prior to incurring the expense. In addition to the foregoing, on or before June
1* of each year (2021-2025), FEMC shall submit a proposed budget amendment of
unexpended funds for the fiscal year ending June 30™ (2021-2025). The proposed
budget amendment shall be submitted to the Department’s Director of -
Administration and Financial Services, with a copy to the Contract Manager and
FBPE. The Department shall either approve or deny the proposed budget
amendment within ten (10) business days of receipt of the request. Failure by the
Department to respond within ten (10) business days of receipt of the proposed
budget amendment shall constitute approval by the Department of the budget
amendment. Such modification cannot be made retroactive. Approved request shall
be signed by both parties, incorporated into the contract as an appendix to
Attachment 7, and maintained in both parties’ contract files for audit purposes.

he rtment a legisla udget r st ing any
ds Fiscal Year (202 5) as di d
of  ministration and Financial Services.
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Viil.

If FEMC fails to meet the minimum level of service or performance as identified in this contract, the
Department will apply financial consequences commensurate with the deficiency. Financial
consequences may include but are not limited to refusing payment, withholding payments until
deficiency is cured, tendering only partial payments, applying liquidated damages to the extent that
this contract so provides, imposition of penalties per Section X.

IX.

A. Corrective action plans may be required for noncompliance, nonperformance, or
unacceptable performance under this contract. Penalties may be imposed for failures to
implement or to make acceptable progress on such corrective action plans.

B. The increments of penalty imposition that shall apply, unless the Department determines that
extenuating circumstances exist, shall be based upon the severity of the noncompliance,
nonperformance, or unacceptable performance that generated the need for corrective action
plan. The penalty, if imposed, shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total contract
payments during this period in which the corrective action plan has not been implemented or
in which acceptable progress toward implementation has not been made.

C. Noncompliance involving the provision of service shall result in the imposition of a five

percent (5%) penalty. Noncompliance as a result of unacceptable performance of

administrative tasks shall result in the imposition of a two percent (2%) penalty.
The deadline for payment shall be as stated in the Order imposing the financial penalties. In
the event of nonpayment the Department may deduct the amount of the penalty from
invoices submitted by the Contractor.

o

A. The total funding of this Agreement is $2,170,875.00 annually and
subject to appropriation and release by the Legislature. The Legislature has
appropriated Two Million Seventy Thousand Dollars ($2,070,000.00) allocated to the
regulation of professional engineers and special inspectors of threshold buildings from the
Professional Regulation Trust Fund to the first fiscal year of this agreement.

The Department has approved the use of One Hundred Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy-
Five Dollars ($100,875.00) from the unlicensed activity funds allocation for the first fiscal
year of this contract. The unlicensed activity funds are to be utilized by the FBPE to perform
the duties related to unlicensed activity pursuant to Chapter 455, Florida Statutes.

The Department’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent
upon the annual appropriation and release by the Legislature in a “grant and aids category.”

B. Method of Payment

1. Payment Clause
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(Fixed Price- Professional Regulation Trust Fund) The Department shall pay the
contractor for delivery of service units provided in accordance with the terms of this
contract for a dollar amount of $517,500.00 per quarter, not to exceed a total of
$2,070,000.00 annually or $8,280,000.00 for the entire contract period, subject to
the availability of funds.

An advance payment not to exceed 25 percent of the contract amount may be made
as soon after July 1% of each fiscal year (2021-2025), as feasible. The remaining
funding will be provided in equal payments on a quarterly basis beginning on or after
October 1, January 1, and April 1 of each year (2021-2025).

In the event FEMC's expenses exceed its draw in any given quarter, and the cash
balance available is insufficient to cover those expenses, FEMC may request an
advance of funds, not to exceed Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00).
Advancement of funds is subject to the approval of budget release pursuant to
sections 216.192(1) and 216.177(2)(a), Florida Statutes.

(Cost Reimbursement- Unlicensed Activity Funds) The Department shall reimburse
FEMC for allowable expenditures incurred pursuant to the terms of this contract for
a dollar amount not to exceed $100,875.00 annually, and $403,500.00 for the
contract period, subject to the availability of funds.

2 Invoice Requirements
(Fixed Price) FEMC shall request payment quarterly or as often as activity has been
performed on behalf of the program through submission of a properly completed
invoice within fifteen (15) days following the end of the quarter for which payment is
being requested.

(Cost Reimbursement) FEMC shall request reimbursement on a monthly basis or as
often as activity has been performed on behalf of the program though submission of
a properly completed cost reimbursement invoice within fifteen (15) days following
the end of the month for which reimbursement is being requested.

Payment may be authorized only for allowable expenditures on the invoice which
are in accord with the limits specified in the line item budget (Attachment 7). The
approved line item budget may be modified only through amendment to the
contract initiated by a written request that includes justification supporting the need
for modification. Such modifications cannot be made retroactive to a date prior to
the execution date of the formal amendment.

3 Supporting Documentation

(Fixed Price) Invoices shall include Deliverables as stated in Section VIl above. FEMC
shall retain sufficient records documenting services provided so that an audit trail
can be maintained.

(Cost Reimbursement) Reimbursement requests from FEMC for Unlicensed Activity
expenditures will include supporting documentation for all requests. Examples
include but are not limited to; for Professional Service Fees an actual invoice showing
the service and amount due and copy of cleared check; for hardware or software an
actual invoice and copy of paid check; for travel [e.g. bills for travel submitted in
accordance with s.122.061,F.S.] actual invoices and copy of paid check; for office
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supplies, telephone bills, number of copies at per copy rate and number of mailings
at postage rate; and for Administrative Services or Staff time, timesheets showing
actual or estimated percentage of time spent, rate of pay and related payroll
expenses applied. FEMC must maintain records documenting the expenditures so
that an audit trail documenting the service provisions is available.

Xl.

A. FEMC shall be responsible for the collection and processing of application fees, initial
licensure fees, active renewal fees, inactive renewal fees, delinquency and reactivation fees,
reimbursement of administrative costs, fines, and other miscellaneous revenue. In
accordance with Section 116.01, Florida Statutes, FEMC shall deposit all receipts to the State
concentration account to the credit of the Professional Regulation Trust Fund no later than
seven (7) working days from the close of the week in which FEMC received the funds. The
Department will provide FEMC with sequentially numbered deposit slips. Each deposit slip
must be accounted for. FEMC will stamp the back of all checks deposited with the
endorsement contained In Attachment 1, Endorsement Stamp.

B. All revenue collected by FEMC shall be entered in Versa: Regulation system using the
appropriate “object code” listed in Attachment 5, Fee Codes.

C. FEMCis responsible for collecting or earmarking out of current licensure fees the $5.00 fee
for unlicensed activity is provided for in Section 455.2281, Florida Statutes. Fees collected
under Section 455.2281, Florida Statutes, may be used by the FBPE to perform duties
relating to unlicensed activity as contemplated in Section 471.038(5), Florida Statutes,
subject to appropriation by the Legistature and allocations made by the Department. This
information shall be tracked by FEMC in Versa: Regulation.

D. FEMC shall have in place a method (subject to approval by the Department) to collect checks
written on insufficient funds (“bad checks”).

E FEMC shall maintain licensing fees that are not excessive but that are adequate to cover
projected costs and maintain a 5% cash balance. If fees are excessive, the board may
implement a waiver of license renewal fees for a period not to exceed two (2) years pursuant
to Section 455.219, Florida Statutes.

F.  FEMC shall record and report accounts receivable (if any) pursuant to the Department’s
policy as provided in Attachment 8.

G. Funds advanced to FEMC shall be deposited in a separate interest bearing account until the
balance, not including the interest, is totally expended for the purposes allowed by the
Agreement. All interest income attributable to or derived from funds advanced to FEMC shall
be returned on a quarterly basis to the Department and will remain as cash to the credit of
the FBPE within the Professional Regulation Trust Fund.

DBPR Core Contract - Revised 03/20/2019 Page 22 of 51 Contract #



Xl

Xiv.

G.

A.

FEMC shall comply with s. 112.061, Florida Statutes, and the guidelines found in the
Reference Guide for state travel expenses to its travel expenditures.

Insurance

FEMC shall secure and maintain during the term of this contract and for all acts performed
during the term of this contract, the insurance coverage required by Section 471.038 (3) (j) 5,
Florida Statutes. FEMC shall ensure that all of the insurers indicated on the insurance policies
are qualified and do business with the State of Florida.

FEMC shall secure and maintain all commercially available insurance to meet the
requirements of Section 471.038(3)(j) 5, Florida Statutes. Both parties acknowledge that
Section 471.038(3)(j)5, Florida Statutes, does not require FEMC to obtain coverage for itself
and the Department which is not obtainable for public policy reasons. However, if at any
time it is determined that insurance becomes available which would otherwise be required
under statute, FEMC will immediately acquire such insurance. Failure by FEMC to secure and
maintain the insurance coverage provided for in this paragraph or in violation of Section
471.038(3)(j)s, Florida Statutes, shall be grounds for terminating this Agreement.

FEMC shall provide for non-employees charged with the responsibility of receiving and
depositing fee and fine revenues to have a faithful performance bond in the amount of Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00), as required by Section 471.038(3)(j)5., Florida
Statutes, and this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Florida,
and venue and jurisdiction for any disputes arising out of this Agreement shall be in the state
courts of Leon County, Florida.

The parties agree that any disputes between the parties regarding their responsibilities
under this Agreement or any provision of Florida Law should be resolved as soon as possible
at the lowest level possible in the most informal manner possible in order to conserve the
resources of the parties. The parties agree to use their best efforts to assure speedy and non-
confrontational resolution of any and all disputes. FEMC recognizes that the Department is
mandated by Florida Statutes with the monitoring of FEMC'’s activities, and after consultation
with the FBPE, has the authority to resolve disputes.

The parties agree to be responsible for their own attorney’s fees and costs incurred in
connection with disputes arising under the terms of this agreement.
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Each party hereby assumes any and all risks of personal injury and property damage
attributable to the acts or omissions of that party or its officers, employees, or agents.
Furthermore, any claim of liability asserted against the Department is subject to the
limitations of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

FEMC shall provide all necessary services to manage its own corporation, including but not
limited to finance and accounting and personnel administration. FEMC shall make only
prudent expenditures directly related to the responsibilities of the FBPE, and in accordance
with this Agreement. FEMC shall maintain all records in accordance with the guidelines of
the Department of State and shall not destroy any records prior to the limits imposed by the
Department of State. FEMC shall maintain an approved Procurement Policy and Coe of Ethics
that governs its directors and employees.

FEMC employees and its Board of Directors are not public employees for the purpose of
Chapters 110 or 112, Florida Statutes, except that the Board of Directors and the President of
FEMC are subject to the provisions of Section 112.061, 112.313(1)-(8) and 112.3135, Florida
Statutes. The Department’s Office of Inspector General is authorized to perform duties
related to members of the Board of Directors of FEMC and its President as set forth in
Section 20.055, Florida Statutes, related to violations of Sections 112.061, 112.313(1)-(8)
and112.3155, Florida Statutes. Nothing herein shall prohibit FEMC from disciplining its
directors and President or FBPR from taking appropriate action. The Executive Office of the
Governor is authorized to impose the penalties cited in Section 112.317, Florida Statues, for
violations of sections 112.313(1)-(8) and112.3155, Florida Statutes, by members of FEMC’s
Board of Directors or its President.

FEMC shall not engage the services of any person or persons now employed by the State of
Florida, including any department or subdivision thereof, to provide services relating to this
Agreement without written consent of the employer of such persons and of this
Department. Also, if FEMC is otherwise employed by the State of Florida during the term of
this agreement, FEMC represents that FEMC has complied with all applicable provisions of
Sections 216.262(1)(d) and 112.3185, Florida Statutes, and all applicable regulations
regarding outside or dual employment and compensation.

FEMC shall be responsible for the acquisition of property, equipment, and supplies necessary
to fulfill the requirements of this Agreement. Any leasing or reservation of space to perform
this Agreement will be the sole responsibility of FEMC

Upon termination of this Agreement or revision thereof whereby FEMC no longer is
approved to provide services as contemplated by this Agreement, all monies, records, data
and property held in trust by FEMC for the benefit of FBPE shall revert to the FBPE or to the
State of Florida if the FBPE ceases to exist. In the event of contract termination, FEMC shall
be responsible for ensuring that all data relating to licensure and discipline can be converted
to use on Department systems and FEMC is solely responsible for the cost of such
conversion.
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Failure to comply with any part of this Agreement shall be grounds for the Department to
terminate this Agreement for default without prior notice or opportunity to cure.

This Agreement and the following attachments constitute the entire Agreement of the
parties:

Attachment 1- Scope of Work

Attachment 2-Certifications and Assurances

Attachment 3- Affidavit- Notice of Trade Secret

Attachment 4- Financial and Compliance Audit Form

Attachment 5- Fee Codes

Attachment 6- Schedule VII: Agency Litigation Inventory

Attachment 7- Proposed Budget for Year Ending June 30, 2021 (Grants and Aid/ Unlicensed
Activity)

Attachment 8- Accounts Receivable and Write-Off Policies and Procedures

Attachment 9- Year- End Incurred Obligations Procedure

Attachment 10- Department Information Technology Resources and Data Access Security
Attachment 11- Endorsement Stamp

No other agreement or modification to this Agreement, expressed or implied, shall be
binding on either party unless same shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This
Agreement may not be orally modified. Any modification must be in writing, expressly titled
an amendment to this Agreement, attached to this Agreement, and signed by both parties.

Xv
A.
The FEMC's obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Department shall be to
the extent permitted by section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other applicable law, and
without waiving the limits of sovereign immunity. This section shall supersede Section 9 of
the Core Contract.
B.

The FEMC shall maintain continuous adequate liability insurance coverage during the
existence of this contract and any renewal(s) and extension(s) thereof. With the exception of
a state agency or subdivision as defined by subsection 768.28(2), F.S., by execution of this
contract, the FBPE accepts full responsibility for identifying and determining the type(s) and
extent of liability insurance necessary to provide reasonable financial protections for the
FEMC and the clients to be served under this contract. The limits of coverage under each
policy maintained by the FEMC do not limit the FEMC’s liability and obligations under this
contract. Upon execution of this contract, FEMC shall furnish the Department written
verification supporting both determination and existence of such insurance coverage. Such
coverage may be provided by a self-insurance program established and operating under the
laws of the State of Florida. The Department reserves the right to require additional
insurance if specified in this contract. This section supersedes Section 10 of the Core
Contract.
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verification supporting both determination and existence of such insurance coverage. Such
coverage may be provided by a self-insurance program established and operating under the
laws of the State of Florida. The Department reserves the right to require additional
insurance if specified in this contract. This section supersedes Section 10 of the Core
Contract.

C. Payment on invoices

Payment on invoices shall be in accordance with Section Xl of this Scope of Work. This

section supersedes Section 19, 20 and 24 of the Core Contract.

D. Publicity
For the purpose of this agreement, the FBPE and the FEMC logo is not a state seal and does

not fall within the ambit of Section 15 of the Core Contracf.

E. Sponsorship
Sections 15 and 16 of the Core Contract do not apply to FEMC and the FBPE but these

sections do apply to any subcontractor of the FEMC or FBPE.

F. Executive Order 20-44

In accordance with Executive Order 20-44, the contractor shall:

1. Provide an annual report detailing total compensation for FEMC's executive leadership
teams, and what percentage of compensation comes from State or Federal allocations.
Total compensation shall include salary, bonuses, cashed-in leave, cash equivalents,
severance pay, retirement benefits, deferred compensation, real-property gifts, and any
other payout.

2. Contractor agrees to inform the Department of any changes in total executive

compensation between annual reports.

End of Attachment 1 (Scope of Work)
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Attachment 2
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

The Department will not award this contract unless the Contractor completes the CERTIFICATIONS AND

RA ned ment. In performance of this contract, the Contractor provides the
ng and

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY
MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTION (29 CFR Part 95 and 45 CFR Part 74).

The undersigned Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

1. Are not ntly deba suspe , ed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
exclude covered t actions department or agency;
2. not within a -year period prece
red against t for commission of
attempting to obtain, or a public (
public transaction; viola eral or St

theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destructio
stolen property;

3. Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumsrated in paragraph A.2. of this
certification; and/or

4. not within a th ar period precedin tion/proposal had one or more public
ctions (Federal, or local) terminated efault.

If the Con sun rtify to any of the statements in this certification, the Contractor shall attach

an explan this

B. NONDISCRIMINATION & EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCE (29 CFR PART 37 AND 45 CFR PART
80).

condit  of this ct, the Co a s that it will comply fully with the nondiscrimination
qualo  rtunity ons of the g
1. wh
or,
on
ed to work in the United States or
participation in any WIA Title I- ty;
2. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), as amended, and all nts by
or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human S v FR to
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the end that, in accordance with Title VI of that Act and the Regulation, no person in the United States
ipa in, be denied the
or vity for which the

3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 197
sed by or pursuant to the ation of
84), to the end that, in acc ce with
qualified handicapped individual in the Uni
excluded from participation in, be denied the
program or activity for which the Applicant rec

4. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L.
rsuant to the u n of the Departm
nd that, in ac a with the Act and

the of age, be deni bene
disc tion under any m or
assistance from the Department.

5. Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 19
by or pursu the of
, to the end in a wi
States shall, on the basis of sex, be exclude
otherwise subjected to discrimination under a
receives Federal financial assistance from the

6. The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101-336), prohibits discrimination in all

ces, including, job hir nt,
n, ing, and other terms, a of p . to
nt, advertising, tenure, layoff, leav al h | ed

and;

C. CERTIFICATION REGARDING PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES, SECTION 287.133, F.S.

The r hereby that  ther it, nor any person or affiliate of the Con has

conv Public En e as ned in section 287.133, F.S., nor placed on the ted v

list.
ontr un and ag hat it is required to inform the Department immediately upon any
e of ms arding atus.

D. ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS FOR REFORM NOW (ACORN) FUNDING
RESTRICTIONS AS NCE (PUB. L.

As a condition of th tract, the Cont tha y fun
restrictions pertaining to ACORN and its subsidi per A , 2
, 111 Cc uing t, 01
that ns made under Pub. L. 111-117 are available under the
111- As of June 20, 2011, this matter is in litigation in the
District Court for the Eastern District of New York.
i u | a cl me all
ti ( b nt s, nd
e s rs Il is ce
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E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LISTS AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS IN
CUBA OR SYRIA, SECTION 287.135, F.S.

nc th

0o e

e P
In ing this in any a t, the Con hereby fies that it is not listed on the
Sc d Comp t Boycott List create anttos n 215.473(2)(a), F.S., and is not
engaged in a Boycott of Israel.
These lists are created pursuant to section 215473, F.S.
The ctor un ds tha uant to the
certi orifa ctor is to have rutin
may ct the Contractor to civil penalties, a , an
termi
If the Con sun rtify to any of the statements in this certification, the Contractor shall attach
an explan this

ing below, the Contractor certifies the representations outlined in parts A through E above are true
rect.

(Signature and Title of Authorized Representative)

Contractor Date

(Street)

(City, State, ZIP Code)

— End of Attachment 2 -
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Attachment 3
AFFIDAVIT - NOTICE OF TRADE SECRET

I, (Name of Affiant), the undersigned, being first duly sworn, do hereby state
under oath and under penalty of perjury, the following:

1 1 am an authorized representative of (Contractor Name), and | am duly empowered
and authorized to certify under oath to the truth of the statements contained in this affidavit.

2. Based upon our review/determination of all contract documents for any trade secret information meeting the
statutory definition provided in subsection 812.081 (1)(c), F.S., there are documents or information claimed to be
trade secrets under Florida law pertaining to our entities response to the formal solicitation and related materials

in Contract Number). YES __ or NO__ (Check one)
Executed this day of 20 ,in
[Name of Affiant]
[Title of Affiant]
Notary Public

My commission expires:

3. e fully exec in |
i affidavit to n the
Contractor shall complete this Section 3 and resubmit this affidavit accompanied by a redacted copy of this
contract to the Department within three (3) business days of receipt of the fully executed contract. The Contractor
states that:

All documents or information claimed to be trade secrets under Florida law have been redacted in the electronic copy
of the response to the formal solicitation and related materials in

provided to the Department of Business and Professional regulation under cover letter dated

20___. Further, (Contractor Name):

a. Considers the redacted information to be trade secret that has value and provides an advantage or
opportunity to obtain an advantage over those who do not know or use it.

b. Has taken measures to prevent the disclosure of the redacted trade secret information to anyone other
than those who have been selected to have access for limited purposes, and such measures continue to
be taken.

c. States that the redacted trade secret information is not, and has not been, reasonably obtainable,
without consent, by other persons by use of legitimate means.

d. States that the redacted trade secret information is not publicly available elsewhere.

Executed this day of 20___,in
[Name of Affiant]
[Title of Affiant]
Notary Public
My commission expires - End of Attachment 3 -
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Attachment 4
Financial and Compliance Audit Form

ou awarded by the De ofBus s and sional
to recipient may be su udits a rmon as
en
MONITORING
In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and Section
,F.S., a (see “AUDITS” W), mo cedures inc bu be
to, on-s y Department s limited ts as de by Ci r A-

133, as revised, or other procedures. By enteri

comply and coo te with any monitoring pro

In the event the artment determines that a

the recipient agrees to comply with any additio

to the re au Th en omply and with
any insp tig ns, its by the Sta

Financial Officer or the Auditor General.

AUDITS
PART I: FEDERALLY FUNDED

This part is applicable if the recipient is a State or local government or a non-profit organization
as defined in OMB Circular A-133, as revised.

In the event the recipient expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards in its fiscal year, the

recipient mus e a single or program fic audit condu in ce the
provisions of Circular A-133, as re EXHIBIT 1 to ag ndi s Federal
e h
d s s,
I e of
with the guidelin abli OomMB
conducted by th itor in
A-133, as revised, will meet the requirements of
this part.
In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part 1 graph 1, the recipient shall
fulfill the relative to auditee respo 1sibilities as p d in Subpart C of OMB
Circular sed.

If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in Federal awards in its fiscal year, an audit

rcular
00in
th the ,
m non-Federal resources.
E: If app e, Department p am office ress other miscel
ing Part | s, such as Web s  where info would help facilita

compliance can be obtained.)
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PART II: STATE REQUIREMENTS

This part is applicable if the recipient is a non-state entity as defined by Section 215.97(2),
Florida Statutes.

In the event that the recipient expends a total

excess of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such

project-specific audit for such fiscal year in a

applicable rules of the Department of Financial

en ( and fo o

to state al

agreement. In determining the state financial a

shall consider all sources of state financial assis

from the Department, other state agencies, and other non-state entities. State financial assistance
incl I di p hrough awards and resources received by a non-state entity
alp chi ui nts.

organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.

If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in st
conducted in accordance with the provisions of S
the event that the recipient expends less than $7
and elects to have an audit conducted in accord

Statutes, the cost of the a ust be paid from the no te entity’s reso the cost of
such an audit must be paid he recipient's resources ned from other entities).
(N ss ot aneous ma ing Part Ii
au Id he the recipie ance can
be

In connection with the audit requirements addressed in paragraph 2 of Part li: State
Requirements, the schedule of expenditures shou t nd by c

number for each contract with the department in e tp The al
statements should disclose whether or not the matching requirement was met for each

a contract. A d costs a due the depart shall be fully

d in the audit age with the specific co t number.

PART lll: REPORT SUBMISSION

d rc as
t ui on
y he

A. Department Contract manager for this agreement (1 copy): [Name and Address)

B. Department of Business and Professional Regulation (1 electronic copy and
management letter, if issued)

Office of the Inspector General
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2601 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-0791

C. The Federal Clearinghouse designated in OMB Circular A-133, as revised (the number
of copies required by Sections .320 (d) (1) and (2), OMB Circular A-133, as revised,
should be submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse), at the following address:

Federal Audit Clearinghouse
Bureau of the Census

1201 East 10" Street
Jefferson, IN 47132

D. Other Federal agencies and pass-through entities in accordance with Sections .320 (e)
and (f), OMB Circular A-133, as revised.

B d, ac of
in irc da
a at res

A. Department Contract manager for this agreement (1 copy):
Aimee Odom, FCCM
2601 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL 32399

B. Department of Business and Professional Regulation (1 electronic copy and
management letter, if issued)

Office of the Inspector General
2601 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-0791

Copies of financial reporting packages required b T II of this agreement shall be submitted by
or on behalf of the recipient directly to each of the ng:

A. The Department at each of the following addresses:

D ment Contract manager for this agreement (1 copy):
A Odom, FCCM

2601 Blair Stone Road

Tallahassee, FL 32399

Department of Business and Professional Regulation (1 electronic copy and
management letter, if issued)

Office of the Inspector General
2601 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-0791

B. The Auditor General's Office at the following address:

Auditor General’'s Office
01, Building
DBPR Co Revi 019 Page 34 of 51 Contract #



111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

Any reports, management letter, or other inform
pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted
F da St and Chapters 10 (local go
p torga ns), Rules of the A r General

packages to the Department for audits done in

tal ties) or 10.650

r ind e the date that
nt in correspondence accompanying the reporting

PART IV: RECORD RETENTION

The recipient shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this
for a period of six years hed ea report ued and shall allow the

t or its designee, Chief F alo or itor Ge access to such records
upon request. The recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the

the

prescribed by the Department of State, Division
of Library and Information Services, Bureau of Archives and Records Management.

DBPR Core Contract - Revised 03/20/2019
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(a) EXHIBIT -1

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT PURSUANT TO THIS
AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

NOTE: If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one Federal program, provide
the same information shown below for each Federal program and show total Federal resources
awarded.

Federal Prog deral agency, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance title and number) -
$ (am

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE FEDERAL RESOURCES
AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

NOTE: If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one Federal program, list
applicable compliance requirements for each Federal program in the same manner as shown below.

Federal Program:
List applicable compliance requirements as follows: N/A

1. First applicable compliance requirement (e.g., what services/purposes resources must be
used for).
2. Second applicable compliance requirement (e.g., eligibility requirements for recipients of the
resources).
3. Etc.
u as )
e tto
1,
(s)
that pe w res be
made. a cy, ay want to attach a copy of the specific law, rule,

or regulation referred to.

TATUTES:
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t of ness and P onal Regulation, Florida Engineers Management
001 170,875.00 lly.

CO PLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

The department has allotted $100,875 from the unlicensed activity account established under s.

455.2281 to be used by the Board of professional En the fo
unlicensed activity. FEMC shall provide admin itra ecu to
with S. 471. F.S, lyp re to
f the board, in acc the 4 8,

FEMC shall not perform the following services:
(1) Except when providing those prosecutorial and investigative services set forth in Section IV
(D) and (E) of this Agreement, FEMC shall not exercise the police powers inherent in the

Flo din term
see co with
or
S, ecu
o]

(3) Any and all ac s with relation to rulemaking, disciplinary, licensing and other official
actions of the FBPE; except that FEMC staff may process the necessary paperwork for these
ac s at the direction of the FBPE.

(4) Lobbying activities on behalf of the FBPE.

(5) FEMC shall not have the authority to issue emergency suspension or restriction orders.
NOTE: Section .400(d) of OMB Circular A-133, as revised, and Section 215.97(5), Florida Statutes,

requ thatthein ation about Federal Programs and State Projects included in Exhibit 1 be
prov dtothere nt.

End of Attachment 4
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ATTACHMENT 5
FEE CODES

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS (FEMC)
79-50-2-547001
79-50-00-00-009

001101
001102
001108

001159

002101
002102
002103
002104
002105

002106

004021
004022
004027
004029

005005

012000

012002

012094

018000

018050

22

22
22
22
22

22
22

22

11

22

22

FEES- CATEGORY-000100

APPLICATIONS
PRTF LICENSE VERIFICATION

DUPLICATES / NAME AND STATUS CHANGE
APPLI FOR ENDORSEMENT- ENG INTERN CERTIFICATION

LICENSES- CATEGORY-000200

APPLICATIONS / LICENSES
RENEWAL

PRTF INACTIVE
REACTIVATION/REINSTATEMENT

DELINQUENT CHARGES

PRTF UNLICENSED

MISC. RECEIPTS- CATEGORY-000400

UNCLAIMED REFUNDS

REVENUE REFUNDS

UNASSIGNED
UNLICENSED ACTIVITY REFUNDS

INTEREST- CATEGORY-000500

INTEREST FROM REVOLVING FUND

FINES, FORFEITURES, JUDGMENTS
AND PENALTIES- CATEGORY-001200

CITATIONS

PENALTIES- CATEGORY-001202

SERVICE CHARGE COLLECTED ON RETURNED CHECKS

REFUNDS- CATEGORY-001800

REFUNDS

REFUNDS
REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS
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ATTACHMENT 6
SCHEDULE VII: AGENCY LITIGATION INVENTORY
Schedule VII: Agency Litigation Inventory
For directions on completing this schedule, please see the "Legislative budget request (LBR)
Instructions" located on the Governor's website.

Contact Person: Phone Number:

Names of the Case: (If no case name, list the
names of the plaintiff and defendant.

Court with Jurisdiction:

Case Number:
Summary of the Complaint:

Amount of the Claim: S

Specific Statutes or Laws (including GAA)

Challenged:
Status of Case:
Who is representing (of record) the state in Counsel
this lawsuit? Check all that apply Office of the Attorney General or Division of Risk

Outside Contract Counsel

If the lawsuit is a class action (whether the
class is certified or not), provide the name of
the firm or firms representing the plaintiff(s).

End of
Attachment 6
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ATTACHMENT 7

FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT CORP
PROPOSED UNLICENSED ACTIVITY BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 21

*Approved by FEMC Board of Directors 04/05/2020

PROPOSED APPROVED e Percentage
'". Income BUDGET BUDGET Cll‘llgG
500 - State Contract
UNLICENSED ACTIVITY ($100,875) ($100,875) $ - 0%
IV.  Total Income $ (100875) ~$  (100,875) 5 0%
Expenses
600 - Salaries & Benefits
600.10 - Salaries - Full Time Wages $ 64,560 $ 63,551 $ 1,009 2%
600.20 - Retirement $ 4,842 $ 4,766 $ 76 2%
600.30 - Payroll Taxes $ 4,939 $ 4,862 $ 77 2%
600.40 - Personnel insurance
600.40.10 - Health $ 6.053 $ 6,053 $ - 0%
600.40.20 - Dental $ 252 $ 252 $ - 0%
600.40.30 - Life & Disability $ 757 $ 757 $ - 0%
610.50 - Worker's Comp (The Zenith) $ 101 $ 101 $ - 0%
Total 600 - Salaries & Benefits $ 81,503 $ 80,341 $ 1,162 1%
630 - Consultant Expense
636 - Court Reporters $ - $ - $ -
638 - Prosecution/Enforcement $ 13,671 $ 13,671 $ - 0%
639 - Contract Monitor $ - $ - $ -
Total 630 - Consultant Expense $ 13,671 $ 13,671 $ - 0%
670 - Public Information & Outreach $ 3,379 $ 4,539 $ (1,162) ~26%
626 - 25 Copying & Printing - Legal $ - $ - $ - 0%
620 - Office Supplies $ - $ - $ - 0%
625 - Postage $ - 3 - $ - 0%

650 - Office Space
651 - Lease Payment
652 - Utilities $ - $ - $ -
653 - Janitorial
656 - Pest Control
657 - Security Monitoring

Total 650 - Office Space $ - $ - $ -
680 - Travel
680.60 - Public Information Travel $ 2,323 $ 2,323 $ - 0%
Total 680 - Travel $ 2,323 $ 2,323 $ -
740 - Renewal Expenses
740.10 - Printing Renewal Notice $ - $ - $ -
740.20 - Mailing Renewal Notice $ - $ - $ -
740.30 - Printing Licenses/ID Cards $ - $ - $ -
740.40 - Mailing Licenses/ID Cards $ - $ - $
740.60 - Renewal Supplies $ - $ - $
740 - Total Renewal Expenses $ - $ 5 $ -
V.  Total Expenses $ 100,876 $ 100,875 $ (0)
Net Ordinary Income (Loss) $ (0) $ 0 $ 0
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FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT CORP

APPROVED OPERATING BUDGET 2020 - 2021

*Approved by FEMC Board of Direciors 04/082020

Inoome
500 - State Contract
DBPR
UNLICENSED ACTIVITY

Total 500 - Income

Expenses
600 - Salaries & Benefits
600 10 - Selaries - Full Time Wages
600.20 Retiremert
600.30 - Payroll Taxes
600.40 - Personnel Insurance
600.40.10 - Health
600.40.20 - Dental
600.40 30 - Life & Disabllity
600.40.40 - FSA & COBRA
Total 600 - Salaries & Benefits
601 - Other Personne! Services (OPS)
610 - Insurance
810.10 - Directors & Officers
610.15 - Business Travel Accident
610.20 - Commercial Liability
610.30 - Professional Liabllity
610.25 CyberRisk Liability
610.50 - Worker's Comp (The Zenith)
Total 610 - insuranos
630 - Consuitant Expense
832 - Legal - FEMC General Counsel
633 - Accounting Services
834 - Computer Consuitants/Services
635 - Human Resource Consultant
638 - Court Reporters
638 - Prosecution/Enforcement
639 - Contract Monitor
Total €30 - Consultant Expense

616 - Publications (includes Study Guide)

6565 - Equipment & Repalr

670 Public Information & Qutreach

672 - Training/Board Members

673 - Board Member Honorarlum

626 - Copying & Printing
626.20 - General Office
626.26 Legal

Total 826 - Copying & Printing

620 - Office Supplies £29%
620.10 - Bank Service Fees
620.50 - Computer Software and Supplles

Total 620 -Office Supplies

625 - Postage
825,40 - General Office
Total 626 - Postage
850 - Office Space
851 - Lease Payment
652 - Utilities
653 - Janitorial
656 - Pest Control
857 - Security Monitoring
658 * Moving Expenses
Total 850 - Office Space

640 - Tetephone
640.10 - VoIP & Local Line Charges 1%
640.30 - Intermet Access 5%

kA

Total 640 - Telephone

860 Travel
880.10 - Board/Committee Meatings 10%
880.20 - Investigat rial 4%
680.30 NCEES Travel -23%
880.40 - General Travel 0%

880.50 - Employee Training
680.60 - Public Information Travel
Total 680 - Travel
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FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT CORP

APPROVED OPERATING BUDGET 2020 - 2021

*Approved hy KEMC Board of Directors 040072020

702 - NCEES Fees for Duss/Tests
770 - Membershipa/Registrations
775 - Employment/Training

740 - Renewal Expenses

74010
740.20 -
740.30 -
740.40 -
740.50 -
740.60 -

Printing Renewal Notice
Malling Renewal Notice
Printing Licenses
Malling Licenses
Renewal OPS

Renewal Supplies

740 - Total Renewal Expenses

ASSETS

110 - Fumiture & Equipment
110 - Computers & Software
115 - Leasehold Improvements

LIABIUTIES

600.50 -

Accrued Leave Liabllity

DBPR Core Contract - Revised 03/20/2019

s 6,000 $
3 12,600 $
$ £ $
$ - 5
$ - $
$ = $
$ 18800 _$
$ o
] 10,000 s
$ - $
$ 10,000 $
= ] 0 .3
End of Attachment 7
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DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND

PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
DEPARTMENT POLICY
TITLE: Accounts Receivable and Write-off POLICY NUMBER: 1.6 (Replaces Policy No
1005-0003)
EFFECTIVE DATE: June 1, 2008 APPROVED BY:

REVISED DATE: May 20, 2011;
December 9, 2013; March _JQ, 2017 SECRETARY: Matilde Miller

1.6.01 PURPOSE

To establish a policy for the processing of account receivable, including when accounts are
submitted to collection agencies.

1.6.02 SCOPE

The Bureau of Finance and Accounting facilitates the submission of account receivable to
collection agencies after due diligence has been taken in collecting the account. Approval is
received from the board or division, except when the board or division has the statutory
authority to fulfill the role of the collection agency.

1.6.03 REFERENCES

Sections 17.04, 17.20, 95.11, 215.34(2), Florida Statutes
Chapter691-21.003 , Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C)
Chief Financial Officer Memoranda No. 15 (1988-89)
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

1.6.04 DEFINITIONS
A. : An amount due the Department from applicants, licensees,
vendors, contractors, employees or other liable parties for goods and/or services
furnished by the Department, including licenses, testing non-refundabk application
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fees, as well as, amounts assessed and due for final orders, consent orders, judgments
or settiements, fines, citations, penalties and returneditems.

: A number assigned in the debit memo system to
represent a claim against a customer for services rendered.

: The Bureau of Finance and Accounting within
Department of Business and Professional Regulation (DBPR).

A debit to the state treasurer's account from a merchant servicescompany
as a result of a cardholder's successfully disputed claim. The transaction includes the
unique merchant number linking the transaction to the merchant service company and
DBPR.

: A private entity approved by the Department of Financial Services
(DFS), whose responsibility is the collection of past due account receivable.

: A sequentially numbered, bank debit memorandum generated by the
Division of Treasury and charged to DBPR denoting a chargeback has occurred. It
contains the amount of the chargeback and identifies the merchant services company
that debited the treasury account.

: A data base system maintained by the Bureau ofFinance and
Accounting to record debit memos and information related to each debit memo.

: The Department of Business & Professional Regulation (DBPR).
: Accounting transactions denied
(denoting a chargeback) or otherwise not honored by the financial institution or company
because of insufficient funds or inaccurate account information. These include online
payments.

The Division of Treasury within the Department of Financial

Services responsible for state treasury fu ns to debi 0s e
backs and liaison functions that fall unde pu state's Fi |
Officer.

: Refers to a computer-based system used to perform
financial transactions electronically. The common types of transactions include
cardholder-initiated transactions whereby a cardholder makes use of a payment card,
electronic payments by businesses including salary payments or electronic check
clearing

. A collection of commonly followed
accounting rules and standards for financial reporting.

: The proprietary software, used by the Department to process
applications, issue licenses, account for financial transactions and execute applicable
business-relatedtransactions used by DBPR as required for licensing and regulatory
activity.
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1.6.05

: The first choice collection agency, selected by the
Department. Past due account receivable that is 120 days to 2 years old is submitted to
MSB.

: An Account Receivable is recognized by the
Department when the Bureau of Finance and Accounting is notified of a non-sufficient
Funds (NSF), that a chargeback has occurred, or a fine is past due.

Service Fee: The state service fee charged for returned checks through the Division of
Treasury pursuant to section 215.34(2), Florida Statutes.

Status 92: The status code in the Versa Regulation Compliance Module, used by
boards and divisions, to mark past due fines as "Ready for Collections." The Status 92
report is a Crystal report query used to place past due accounts at MSB or UCB for
collections.

: The second choice collection agency, selected by the
Department. Past due account receivable that is 2 to 5 years old is submittedto UCB.

Write off: An accounting adjustment reflecting the portion of an account receivable

determined to be uncollectible. Expectations for these accounts will remain in the Single
Licensing System and will still be collected if debtor makes payment.

POLICY STATEMENT

This policy provides a general description of the structure of the Department's account
receivable function. The Bureau of Finance and Accounting is responsible for monitoring
account receivable. This policy covers the process of sending to collection agencies dishonored
and NSF payments that are 120 days or older, and fines or penalties that have been designated
ready for collections by the division orboard.

1.6.06
A

RESPONSIBILITIES

The BFA, Revenue Section, prepares account receivable for submission to the approved
collection agencies.

The dishonored checks, EFT, credit card charge backs, and stale dated or non-payment
money orders are processed by the BFA. When the Division of Treasury notifies the
BFA of a returned item, a service fee will be assessed (s. 215.34, F.S.) and added to the
amount due ($15 or 5 percent of the face amount of the check, draft, or order, whichever
is greater, not to exceed $150).

BFA will send an initial NSF letter to the customer. Account receivable that is 90 days
old but less than 120 days old and will be sent to MSB. This process is to be completed
monthly for the NSF accounts that are 90 days old.

The BFA will prepare fines, penalties, and other account receivable is to be submitted to
collection agencies. Each month the Status 92 report for all boards and divisions will be
retrieved from the Business Intelligence Launch Pad or other designated software in
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1.6.07

None

Excel format. The BFA will use the Status 92 report (Excel) to gather fine and penalty accounts ready for
placement at collection agencies.

The BFA will use the Excel submission form provided by Department of Financial Services to submit
fines, penalties, and other account receivable to MSB and/or UCB for collection. Account updates received
from the boards, divisions and collection agencies will be recorded in the monthly accountinventory.

Accounts submitted to MSB will remain with that collection agency until the end of the contract period
with MSB.

The BFA will send accounts to the Department of Financial Services for write off
pursuant to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

FORMS

End of Attachment 8
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ATTACHMENT 9
Year-End Incurred Obligations Procedure

Year End Incurred Obligations Procedures
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

Reference:

Section 216.301 (a) b), Florida st requires an cial tify any obligation
whichhasnotbeen ursedasofJ th.Thea as obl notexc lable
appropriation balances by budget entity.

Anyincu notd edby Septe m charged ined
thatther entb foranyincu s, entwillb

Incurred Obligations
Incurred obligations are items purchased and received by close of business on June 30"

Incurred Obligation Process:

Atthe chfisca ounting entries ase ins. ughtheold
fiscal ended, egalobligation prio nm used.
da
ly the "Original Contract Date" will be the date
iv be prior to July 1'!

On or about October 1*! the spreadsheet must be resubmitted to the Contract Manager with the date paid for each obligatlon

Timelines:
* On utJu to s fiscal year disbursements must be reportedtothe
Co Man p y ent.

* Incurred Obligations e ire September 30™ each fiscal year.

+ Ono final spreadsheet will be submitted to the Contract Manager with all paid obligations notedin
the "

Credit Card Payables:
t(:rtjdlitc1qlrd payables mustbe accompanied by documentation demonstrating the payable wasincurred (charged) andreceived prior
o July 11,

End of Attachment 9
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ATTACHMENT 10

DEPARTMENT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES
AND DATA ACCESS SECURITY

le 74-2, dministra Code (F.A.C.), and comply
i rements entthe C  actor has access to any
e
a . The Contractor shall designate an appropriately skilled individual to

function as its Data Security Officer. The Data Security Officer shall act as the liaison to
the Department's Division of Technology and shall maintain an appropriate level of data
security for the information the Contractor is collecting or using in the performance of this
contract. Anappropriate level of security includes submitting required access request
documents for Department approval, and tracking all contractor employees that have
access to any Departmental data system or information. The Data Security Officer shall
ensure that user access to the data system or information is timely removed for all
separated Contractor employees. The Contractor agrees to notify the Department's
assigned contract manager in writing within twenty-four (24) hours of employee
resignations or layoffs, and immediately for involuntary terminations for staff that have
access to the Department's information systems. As applicable, the Contractor shall
execute a network connection agreement that shall ensure compliance with Department
security policies prior to connection to the Department's internal network as required by
Rule 74-2, F.A.C.

b All Contractor employees who have access to
Departmental information technology systems and/or Department data shall be required to
read and comply with all appropriate Department information technology security policies
and shall sign and submit to the Department's assigned contract manager an attestation
that they have read, understood and agree to comply with each policy. Upon execution of
this contract, the Department's assigned contract manager shall provide a copy of all
appropriate Department information technology security policies to the Contractor.

o The Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to grant
rk, s, and staff by
ust nted s missi

etwork, systems, and data. The Department
reserves the right to unilaterally suspend access for security reasons. Contractor
employees shall be granted access to Department information technology resources
based on the principles of "least privilege" and "need to know." The Department's
assigned contract manager, in conjunction with the ment's sion of nology,
shall conduct quarterly access reviews of the Contr employ to ens at
access for separated employees was timely reported and removed.

d : Background screening is required for all Contractor
emp es as Information ogy workers with access to ssing
facili or have system, d , developer, network, or oth

capabilities for systems, applications, or servers with risk categorization of moderate or
high. The Contractor agrees to conduct Level 2 background screening for such
employees as described in s. 435.05, F.S., and Rule 74-2, F.A.C., at the Contractor's
expense. For other Contractor employees who request access to Department data or
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information technology systems but do not fall into the above category, the Contractor
agrees to conduct a Level 1 background screening as described in's. 110.1127 and s.
435.05, F.S., at the Contractor's expense . For each Contractor employee, the Contractor
shall sign and submit to the Department's assigned contract manager an attestation,

nt, t ea L 10 2 background
and the r; the ing has not
rma to ss. 435. , F.S. (for level

ss. 435.04 (2) and (3), F.S. (for Level 2), or computer- pursuant to Ch r

815, F.S.; and that the Contractor assumes responsibility for the employee's use of the
Department's data and information resources.

e r shall provide information security
s to Department in n techno

d cc 74-2, F.A.C. Initial shall be ided
o] ct oyment start date, and annually thereafter.
h to xempt or confidential and exempt from

d g ing

e ai aterials

S c

maintain records of individuals who have
completed initial and annual security awareness training and shall make these records
available to the Department upon request.

f Vendors, ctors, and provi em by the or
of the De nt shall comply the ment's
t ay rity es, and e adequate rity measures to p agency
i on, lica data, res , and serv These measures e
ing ogy th physical ssuch as bu ng security and
icp nt of m s. If Depa datawillresi on the
ctor's sys Department may co or request the Contractor tat
ntractor's , an annual network ration test or security audi
Contractor's system on which Department data resides. No Department data or
in on shall be s in, es n, or shipped to o re locations or out of the
U tates of Ame eg ss ethod, except as red by law or expressly

agreed to by the Department.

g The Contractor shall make every effort to protect and avoid unauthorized
release of any sensitive, exempt or confidential information by ensuring both data and
vic
sh will
ed via
a trust ch as SSL, TLS, SSH, VPN, IPSec or a comparable protocol approved
by the
h
exempt and confidential information from un
mation te ity
onal infor ribed in ss. 501.171(g), F.S. Access to

sensitive, exempt and confidential data shall be granted to the Contractor and
subcontractors by the Department on a need to know basis. Except as required by law or
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legal process and after notice to the Department, the Contractor shall not
divulge to third parties any sensitive, exempt or confidential information
obtained by the Contractor or its agents, distributors, resellers, subcontractors,
officers or employees in the course of performing contractual services.

The Department shall have the right to investigate any
error attributable to the Contractor relating to access or dissemination of exempt
or confidential and exempt records, as well as any instance of lost or missing
data. The Department may take appropriate legal action as a result of such
investigation.

: The Contractor agrees to notify the Department's
assigned contract manager as soon as possible, but no later than 3 business
days following the determination of any breach or potential breach of personal
information and/or confidential departmental data. The Contractor shall provide
notice to affected parties of a security bre:ach in accordance with s. 501.171, F.S.

k The Contractor shall enforce a procedure for sanitizing
surplus or transferred equipment to protect any sensitive or confidential
Department data that may reside on that equipment. At a minimum, the
Contractor shall ensure that sanitization is completed according to acceptable
methods described in Rule 74-2, F.A.C., and provide documentation to the
Department's Division of Technology, evidencing completion of the equipment
sanitization.

. Upon contract termination or expiration, the Contractor will

Copies: Submit to the Department's assigned contract manager copies of
all finished or unfinished documents, data studies, correspondence, reports
and other products prepared by or for the Contractor under this contract;
submit copies of all Department data to the Department in a format to be
designated by the Department in accordance with s. 119.0701, F.S.: shred
or erase parts of any retained duplicates containing personal information
(as defined by s. 501.171, F.S.); all copies containing personal information
must be made unreadable;

Originals: Retain its original records such as data required by this contract
and maintain (in confidence to the extent required by law) the Contractor's
original records in un-redacted form, until the records retention schedule
expires according to State of Florida General Records Schedule GS1-SL,
and to reasonably protect such documents and data during any pending
legal hold, investigation or audit;

Both copies and originals: Upon expiration of all retention schedules and
legalholds, audits or investigations, with notice to the Department, destroy
all Department data from the Contractor's systems, including but not limited
to, electronic data and documents containing personal information or other
data that is confidential and exempt under Florida public records law.

m  Subcontractors: The Contractor shall require that any entities subcontracting with
the Contractor who are granted access to Department data or information
technology systems comply with the data security requirements stated above.

End of Attachment 10
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ATTACHMENT 11

ENDORSEMENT STAMP

PAY TO THE ORDER OF
WELLS FARGO
FOR DEPOSIT ONLY
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF
FLORIDA BPR
FL BOARD OF PROF
ENGINEERS LOCATION 7900009
ACCOUNT
#
001009073301

End of Attachment 11
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
& BY-LAWS

2023
ANNUAL
REPORT




Bepartment of Htate

| certify the attached is a true and correct copy of the Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation, filed on February 5, 1899, for FLORIDA ENGINEERS
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION, a Florida corporation, as shown by the
records of this office.

The document number of this corporation is N97000005608.

Given under my hand and the
Great Seal of the State of Florida
at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the

Fifth day of February. 1999

CREO22 (1-99) ecretary of State



Pursuant to the provisions of §617.1006 F.S., the Florida Engineers Management
Corporation, a Florida non-profit corporation, adopts the following Articles of Amendment and
Restatement to its Articles of Incorporation:

1. The amended and restated Articles of Incorporation as set forth in Attachment
“A”,

2. The amended and restated Articles of Incorporation were adopted by unanimous
written consent on January 29, 1999.

3 The amended and restated Articles of Incorporation were adopted by the members
and directors of the Florida Engineers Management Corporation by sufficient vote
for approval. ’ :

C Qj—i«d&-«fﬂ/ | &/s/ﬂe

Dennis Bérton, President




The name of this corporation shall be Florida Engineers Managem  Corporation.

This corporation’s duration shall be perpetual, unless it is hereafter dissolved according to law.
ARTICLE [Il. PURPOSE

This corpomﬁonisbemgfounedforﬂlebmﬁtofﬁwDepmmofmmd
Professional Regulation and the Board of Professional Engineers for the purpose of providing
administrative, investigative, and prosecutorial services as provided in §471.038 F.S. and any
amendments thereto, and engaging in the transaction of any and all activities permitted under the laws
of Florida and the United States of America. This corporation is irrevocably dedicated to and
operated exchusively for non-profit purposes; and no part of the income or assets of the corporation
ghall be distributed to, nor inure to the benefit of any individual.

The purposes for which this organization is organized are exclusively religious, charitable,
scientific, literary and educational within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 or the comresponding provision of any fitture United States Intemal Revenue law.
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ARTICLE IV. POWERS

This corporation may do and perform all such acts and things, including those generally
allowed by the laws of Florida relative to nonprofit corporations, as now existing, or as the law may
hencefosth provide, as from time to time may be necessary or expedient to the exercise of any and
all of its corporate fimctions, powers, and rights.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, this organization shall not carry on any
acﬁviﬁesmtpemﬁuedtobeémﬁedmbymmimﬁmmmtﬁomhdaalmemxmdu
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or the comresponding provision of any fisture
United States Internal Revenue law.

ARTICLE V, MEMBERSHIP

Mmbemhipmﬂmwmomﬁmshanatanﬁmes,belmmdmmdiﬁdudsam;&uedwthe
Board of Directors as provided in §471.038 F.S. The power of appointment and the power to
withdraw that appointment shall be as set forth in §471.038 F.S.

This corporation'’s initial Board of Directors shall have seven directors as set forth in
§471.038 F.S. The directors of this corporation must, at all times, be members of this corporation and
shall be the only members of this corporation. The directors named herein, comprising the initial
Board of Directors, shall hold office until their successors are duly qualified. The name and address
of each individual who shall serve as a member of the Initial Board of Directors are:
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Eugene Bechamps, P.E. Charles E. Langbein, Jr., P.E.
E.N. Bechamps and Associates, Inc. 120 Parkside Drive, S.E.
5200 Blue Lagoon Drive, Suite 150 ‘Winter Haven, FL 33884
Miami, FL 33126
William H. Palm, P.E. Charles L. Proctor, II, Ph.D,, P.E.
Glace & Radcliffe, Inc. 69 Turkey Creek
630 Wymore Rd. 1174D N. W. 71st Terrace
Maitiand, FL 32751 Alachua, FL. 32615
Michael A. Shorstein Ben G. Watts, P.E.
Shorstein & Kelly, P.A. Carter & Burgess
1660 Prudential Drive, Suite 402 1000 Legion Place, Suite 1400
Jacksonville, FL 32207 Orlando, FL 32801
Lamar Winegeart
Winegeart & Graessle, P.A.
219 Newnam Street
Jacksonville, FL 32202

ARTICLE VI OFFICERS

The officers shall consist of a president, a secretary, and a freasurer. This corporation may
have such other officers as may be provided in the corporate Bylaws. The officers shall be elected
anmually by the Board of Directors. The manner of the election of the officers shall be specified in
the corporate Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII. INDEMNIFICATION

This corporation shall indemnify any officer, director, employee, or agent, and any former

officer, director, employee, or agent, to the fll extent permitted by law.
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The initial address of this corporation’s principal office shall be:

1208 Hays Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301

The name of the individual who shall serve as this corporation’s initial registered agent and
the address is:

Dennis Barton
1208 Hays Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301

ARTICLE X, INCORPORATORS

The name and address of the subscriber to these Articles of Incorporation is:
Dennis Barton

1208 Hays Street

Tallahassee, FL 32301

Corporate Bylaws will be hereinafter adopted by the Board of Directors. The corporate
Bylaws may be amended or repealed, in whole or in part, by the Board of Directors in the marmer
prqvidedﬂmdmprovidedﬂmﬁ:eyuenothwonsistmnwiﬁlﬁwpmvisions of these Articles of
Incorporation. The Bylaws and any amendments thereto shall also be approved as provided in
§471.038 F.S.

to these Articles of Incorporation shall be adopted by a resolution of the Board
of Directors subject to the approval as provided in §471.038 F.S.
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ARTICLE XIII. ASSETS UPON DISSOLUTION

Upon the dissolution of the organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt
purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or
comesponding section of any fiture Federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the Federal, state, or
local govemment for a public purpose. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by
& court of competent jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the organization is then
located, exclusively for such purposes.

This corporation’s subscriber, for the purpose of forming this nonprofit corporation under the
laws of Florida, has executed these Articles of Incorporation, on the date indicated next to his

signature.
| W a5/
Dennis Barton Date
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ACCEPTANCE OF REGISTERED AGENT
Ihereby accept my designation as resident agent and agree to serve as the resident agent of
Florida Engineers Management Corporation. 1hereby state that I am familiar with and accept the
duties and responsibilities as registered agent for The Florida Engineers Management Corporation.

M%««
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BYLAWS
OF

FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

ARTICLE 1. NAME & LOCATION OF CORPORATION

The name of this corporation is Florida Engineers Management Corporation.
The corporation may have such corporate offices, anywhere within and without the state of its
incorporation as the Board of Directors from time to time may appoint, or the business of the
corporation may require. The “principal place of business” or “principal business” or
“executive” office or offices of the corporation may be fixed and so designated from time to time
by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE I1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this corporation is to transact any lawful business under the laws of the
State of Florida as contemplated in Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, and the Articles of
Incorporation.

ARTICLE I11. MEMBERSHIP

Membership in the corporation shall, at all times, be limited to individuals appointed to
membership as provided in Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, and who shall also serve as the
Board of Directors. The power of appointment to membership, and the power to withdraw that
appointment and rescind the membership, shall be set forth in Section 471.038, Florida Statutes.

Any member may resign by submitting a written resignation to the Board of Directors
and to the Secretary of the Department of Business and Professional Regulation (the
“Department”) and the Board of Professional Engineers; and thereupon such resignation shall

become effective forthwith without need of any acceptance, unless otherwise specified therein.



Any member may be removed from membership as provided in Section 471.038, Florida
Statutes.

ARTICLE IV. MEETING

Section A. Place Of Meetings

Meeting shall be held at the principal office or place of business of the corporation or at
such other suitable place as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section B. Annual Meetings

An annual meeting shall be held on such day and date and at such time as may be
expressly determined by a majority of directors. Notice of the annual meetings shall be given in
writing to each director. The members may transact such business of the corporation as may
properly come before them including the election of a Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson, and
election of officers. Notice of annual meetings shall also be provided to members of the public
as required by Section 286.011, Florida Statutes.

Section C. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall
be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors. Notice of regular meetings of
the Board of Directors shall be given in writing to each director. Notice of all regular meetings
shall also be provided to members of the public as required by Section 286.011, Florida Statutes.

Section D. Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairperson by giving
written notice to each director, which notice shall state the time, place, and purpose of the
meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the president or

secretary, in like manner and on like notice, on the written request of at least three directors.



Notice of all special meetings shall also be provided to members of the public as required by
Section 286.011, Florida Statutes

Section E. Waiver Of Notice

Before or at any meeting of the Board of Directors, any director may, in writing, waive
notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.
However, notice of meetings to members of the public that is required by Section 286.011 may
not be waived. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the board shall be a waiver of notice
by him or her of the time and place thereof. If all the directors are present at any meeting of the
board, no notice to directors shall be required and any business may be transacted at such
meeting. To the extent permitted by law, any lawful action of the Board of Directors may be
taken without a meeting if written consent to such action is signed by all the directors and filed
with the minutes of the board.

Section F. Quorum

At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the directors then serving shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the directors
present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors,
except where a larger number is required by law, Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. If,
at any meeting of the Board of Directors there is less than a quorum present, the majority of
these present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any such adjourned meeting, any
business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted
provided notice is given to members of the public as required by Section 286.011, Florida

Statutes.



ARTICLE V. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section A. Number & Term Of Office

The affairs of the corporation shall be governed by a Board of Directors composed of
seven (7) persons appointed as provided in Section 471.038, Florida Statutes. Appointments
shall be for 4-year terms, and no member shall serve more than two consecutive terms. The term
of the directors named in the Articles of Incorporation shall expire when their successors have
been appointed and have been duly qualified. Directors shall hold office until their term expires.

Section B. Governing Powers

The Board of Directors shall have all powers and duties necessary or appropriate for the
administration of the affairs of this corporation and may do all such acts and things as are by law
or by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws directed to be exercised and done by the
members.

Section C. Vacancies

Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be filled by appointment as provided in Section
471.038, Florida Statutes.

Section D. Compensation

Compensation shall be paid to directors for their services in accordance with Section
112.061, Florida Statutes. Directors, officers, and employees shall be reimbursed for expenses
incurred by them in the performance of their duties in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida

Statutes.



ARTICLE VI. OFFICERS

Section A. Authorized Officers

The principal officers of the corporation shall be a president, a secretary and a treasurer,
and there may be one or more vice presidents, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of
Directors. No two offices, except those of secretary and treasurer, may be held by the same
person. The directors may appoint an assistant secretary and assistant treasurer, and such other
officers as in their judgment may be necessary.

Section B. Election of Officers and Chairpersons.

The officers of the corporation and the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Board of
Directors shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting. Unless
sooner removed by the Board, the officers and chairs shall serve for a term of one year and until
their successors are elected and shall qualify. Any vacancies occurring in offices or chairs shall
be filled by the Board of Directors, from time to time. The Board of Directors shall appoint such
temporary or acting officers or chairs as may be necessary during the temporary absence or
disability of the regular officers or chairs.

Prior to each annual meeting of the Board of Directors, the Chair and Vice-Chair shall
meet for purposes of developing recommendations for the election, or re-election, of officers and
chairs. Notice of the meeting shall be provided to members of the public as required by Section

286.011, Florida Statutes.



Section C. Removal

Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, any
officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his or her successor elected at any
regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at any special meeting called for such purpose.

Section D. President

The president shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation. He or she shall have
all the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of president of a
corporation.

Section E. Vice President

There may be one or more vice presidents, as the Board of Directors shall from time to
time determine. In the absence or disability of the president, the first vice president, shall
perform the duties and exercise the powers of the president. The vice president shall also
perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Section F. Secretary

The secretary or his or her designee shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of
Directors, of the membership, and of the Executive Committee. He or she shall have custody of
the seal of the corporation, and of such other books and records of the corporation as the Board
of Directors may provide. He or she shall perform the duties and functions customarily
performed by the secretary of a corporation together with such other duties as the Board of
Directors may prescribe.

Section G. Treasurer and Comptroller

The treasurer shall have custody of the corporate funds and securities, and shall keep full

and accurate account of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the corporation and



shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name of and to the credit of the
corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. He or she shall
disburse the funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper
vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render an account of all his or her transactions as
treasurer and of the financial condition of the corporation whenever called upon to do so.

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENTS

Except as otherwise required by law, these Bylaws may be amended at any regular
meeting of the Board of Directors or at any special meeting called for that purpose, provided that
written notice of the proposed amendment shall have been given at least ten (10) days prior to
such meeting.

ARTICLE XIII. CORPORATE SEAL

The Board of Directors shall provide a suitable corporate seal containing the name of the
corporation, which seal shall be in the charge of the secretary. If so directed by the Board of
Directors, a duplicate seal may be kept and used by the treasurer or any assistant secretary or
assistant treasurer.

ARTICLE IX. FISCAL MANAGAMENT

Section A. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of July of every year, except
that the first fiscal year of the corporation shall begin at the date of incorporation.

Section B. Auditing & Reports

At the close of each fiscal year, the books and records of the corporation shall be audited.
The president of the corporation shall cause to be prepared annually a full and correct statement

of the affairs of the corporation, including a balance sheet and financial statement of operations



for the preceding fiscal year. Such audit shall comply with the requirements of Section
471.038(3)(k), Florida Statutes, and be submitted to the Board of Directors, the Department, and
the Auditor General for review.

Section C. Execution Of Corporate Documents

With the prior authorization of the Board of Directors, all contracts shall be executed on
behalf of the corporation by either the president or any other officer that has been delegated such
authority in writing.  All notes or checks shall be executed on behalf of the corporation by at
least two of the following officers of the corporation: president, vice president, secretary, or
treasurer.

Section D. Fidelity Bonds

The Board of Directors may require that all officers and employees of the corporation
having custody or control funds furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds
shall be paid by the corporation.

Section E. Indemnity

Each officer, director, employee or agent of the corporation shall be indemnified by the
corporation in the manner and to the extent provided in Sections 617.0831 and 607.0850, Florida -

Statutes.

Approved and adopted as the Bylaws of the Corporation this4— day of AHQJ’ | /

2018.
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FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT CORP

PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET 2022 - 2023

As Approved by FEMC BOD 04/12/2022 PROPOSED BUDGET | |APPROVED BUDGET FEER
2022 - 2023 %ﬁfr‘le'nggg)z Difference Change Comments
Income
500 - State Contract
DBPR $ (2,070,000) $ (2,070,000) $ -
UNLICENSED ACTIVITY $ (100,875) $ (100,875) $ -
Total 500 - Income $ (2,170,875) _$ (2,170,875) _$ = 0%  No Change in contract or grant revenue amounts
Expenses
600 - Salaries & Benefits
. 5.38% COLA for 11.19 staff; (3% for ED); (less 1.81 FTE from last FY);
600.10 - Salaries - Full Time Wages $ 947,036 $ 933,671 $ 13,365 196  +854k reserve (15 FTE)
600.20 - Retirement $ 89,296 $ 93,807 $ (4,512) -5%  Allstaff - 12.19 FTE
600.30 - Payroll Taxes $ 73,000 $ 78,521 $ (5,521) -7%  Reduction due to Unemployment Ins calculation decrease
600.40 - Personnel Insurance
600.40.10 - Health $ 124,458 $ 137,150 $ (12,692) -9% Est. 6% increase less 1.81 FTE
600.40.20 - Dental $ 2,993 $ 3,445 $ (452) -13% Est. 3% increase less 1.81 FTE
600.40.30 - Life & Disability $ 10,332 $ 11,516 $ (1,183) -10%  Est. 5% increase less 1.81 FTE
600.40.40 - FSA & COBRA Mngmnt $ 1,362 $ 1,362 $ ©) 0%
Total 600 - Salaries & Benefits $ 1,248,476 $ 1,259,472 $ (10,996) -1%
601 - Other Personnel Services (OPS) $ - $ - $ -
610 - Insurance
610.10 - Directors & Officers $ 4,773 $ 4,916 $ (143) -3%  All Premiums Based on Actual 2021-22
610.15 - Business Travel Accident $ 750 $ 750 $ ° 0%
610.20 - Commercial Liability $ 8,436 $ 7,805 $ 631 8%  Higher fire rating for new building
610.30 - Professional Liability $ 5,883 $ 6,005 $ (122) -2%
610.25 - CyberRisk Liability $ 3,840 $ 4,251 $ (411) -10%
610.50 - Worker's Comp (The Zenith) $ 1,578 $ 1,522 $ 56 4%
Total 610 - Insurance $ 25,260 $ 25,249 $ 11 0%
630 - Consultant Expense
632 - Legal - FEMC General Counsel $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ - 0%  Reserve
633 - Accounting Services $ 31,000 $ 40,100 $ (9,100) -23%  New Audit Firm
634 - Computer Consultants/Services $ 113,188 $ 100,935 $ 12,253 12%  Upgrade Laserfiche Workflow to Cloud
635 - Human Resource Consultant $ 500 $ 500 $ ° 0%  Reserve
636 - Court Reporters $ 4,295 $ 4,187 $ 108 3%
638 - Prosecution/Enforcement $ 225,413 $ 221,602 $ 3,811 2%  Average btwn '20-'21 & '21-'22 plus $10k reserve
639 - Contract Monitor $ 19,200 $ 19,200 $ - 0%  Per contract with DBPR
Total 630 - Consultant Expense $ 403,596 $ 396,525 $ 7,071 2%
616 - Publications (includes Study Guide) $ 17,139 $ 16,687 $ 452 3%
655 - Leased Equipment & Repair $ 18,471 $ 14,874 $ 3,597 24%  Qrtrly A/C Maintenance required in new lease
670 - Public Information & Outreach $ 16,830 $ 15,250 $ 1,580 10%
672 - Training/Board Members $ 3,000 $ = $ 3,000 100%  Long Range Planning Meeting
673 - Board Member Honorarium $ 12,500 $ 8,600 $ 3,900 45%
626 - Copying & Printing
626.20 - General Office $ 11,623 $ 9,960 $ 1,663 17%
626.25 - Legal $ 480 $ 700 $ (220) -31%
Total 626 - Copying & Printing $ 12,103 $ 10,660 $ 1,443 14%
620 - Office Supplies $ 17,490 $ 12,683 $ 4,807 38%  Cleaning supplies required for new building
620.10 - Bank Service Fees $ 1,380 $ 1,320 $ 60 5%
620.50 - Computer Software and Supplies $ 28,191 $ 27,798 $ 393 1%
Total 620 - Office Supplies $ 47,061 $ 41,801 $ 5,260 13%
625 - Postage
625.40 - General Office $ 12,180 $ 12,000 $ 180 2%  Includes new PB SendPro Account
Total 625 - Postage $ 12,180 $ 12,000 $ 180 2%
650 - Office Space
651 - Lease Payment $ 98,000 $ 117,225 $ (19,225) -16%  New building/6-year lease
652 - Utilities $ 17,400 $ > $ 17,400 100%  Utilities not included in new lease
653 - Janitorial $ 7,830 $ 1,280 $ 6,550 512%  Janitorial services not included in new lease
656 - Pest Control $ 300 $ 300 $ ° 0%
657 - Security Monitoring $ 1,500 $ 2,482 $ (982) -40%  Changed from Vector to SafeTouch Security
658 - Moving Expenses $ - $ 8,500 $ (8,500) -100%
659 - Leasehold Improvements (Non-Capital) $ 4,500 $ 20,000 $ (15,500) -78%  Refurb Cabinets + Misc Improvements
Total 650 - Office Space $ 129,530 $ 149,787 $ (20,257) -14%
640 - Telephone
640.10 - VoIP Charges $ 13,510 $ 14,520 $ (1,010) -7%  Eliminated fax line with Centurylink
640.30 - Internet Access Charges $ 10,814 $ 10,798 $ 16 0.1%
640.40 - Conference/Video Calls $ 150 $ 120 $ 30 25%
Total 640 - Telephone $ 24,473 $ 25,438 $ (965) -4%
680 - Travel
680.10 - Board/Committee Meetings $ 79,403 $ 59,028 $ 20,375 35% 6 FBPE/3 FEMC Board Meetings (In person)
680.20 - Investigative/Prosecutorial $ 2,000 $ 1,800 $ 200 11%  Annual BOAF Conference - 2 Staff
680.30 - NCEES Travel $ 8,000 $ - $ 8,000 100% 3 BOD Members & 1 Staff
680.40 - General Travel $ 120 $ e $ 120 100%
680.50 - Employee Training Travel $ 15,550 $ 9,250 $ 6,300 68%  Training back to pre-COVID levels
680.60 - Public Information Travel $ 8,400 $ 6,540 $ 1,860 28%  Outreach back to pre-COVID levels
Total 680 - Travel $ 113,473 $ 76,618 $ 36,855 48%
702 - NCEES Fees for Dues/Tests $ 6,500 $ 6,500 $ = 0%
770 - Memberships/Registrations $ 3,984 $ 4,364 $ (380) -9%  Closer to actual
775 - Employment/Training $ 23,312 $ 12,050 $ 11,262 93%  Training & certification in Laserfiche - 2 Staff
ASSETS
110 - Furniture & Equipment $ 1,500 $ 25,000 $ (23,500) -94%  New Refrigerator plus install
110 - Computers & Software $ 35,000 $ 37,000 $ (2,000) -5%  New server/Reserve
115 - Leasehold Improvements $ 1,487 $ 10,000 $ (8,513) -85%  New countertop & cabinet in bathroom
LIABILITIES $ N
600.50 - Accrued Leave Liability $ 15,000 $ 23,000 $ (8,000) -35%  Employees taking more PTO
$ 2,170,875 $ 2,170,875 $ 0) 0%
$ 0 $ 0 $ ()

1\BUDGET\BUDGET 2022-2023\FEMC Budget FY 2022-2023 Approved by FEMC BOD 4/1212022



FLORIDA ENGINEERS MANAGEMENT CORP

PROPOSED UNLICENSED ACTIVITY BUDGET
As Approved by FEMC BOD 04/12/2022

Income
500 - State Contract

UNLICENSED ACTIVITY

Total Income

Expenses
600 - Salaries & Benefits
600.10 - Salaries - Full Time Wages
600.20 - Retirement
600.30 - Payroll Taxes

600.40 - Personnel Insurance

600.40.10 - Health
600.40.20 - Dental
600.40.30 - Life & Disability
610.50 - Worker's Comp (The Zenith)
Total 600 - Salaries & Benefits
630 - Consultant Expense
636 - Court Reporters
638 - Prosecution/Enforcement
639 - Contract Monitor

Total 630 - Consultant Expense

670 - Public Information & Outreach
626 - 25 Copying & Printing - Legal
620 - Office Supplies

625 - Postage

65U - Office Space

651 -
652 -
653 -
656 -
657 -

Total 650 - Office Space

680 - Travel

Lease Payment
Utilities
Janitorial

Pest Control

Security Monitoring

680.60 - Public Information Travel

Total 680 - Travel

740 - Renewal Expenses

740.10 - Printing Renewal Notice

740.20 - Mailing Renewal Notice

740.30 - Printing Licenses/ID Cards

740.40 - Mailing Licenses/ID Cards

740.60 - Renewal Supplies

740 - Total Renewal Expenses

Total Expenses

Net Ordinary Income (Loss)

PROPOSED APPROVED
Percentage
BUDGET BUDGET 2021 Difference
Change

2022 - 23 22
$ (100,875) $ (100,875) $ - 0%
$ (100,875) $ (100,875) $ - 0%
$ 68,595 $ 66,578 $ 2,018 3%
$ 5,145 $ 4,993 $ 151 3%

5,248 5,093 154 3%

$ 6,355 $ 6,355 $ = 0%
$ 252 $ 252 $ = 0%
$ 797 $ 797 $ = 0%
$ 121 $ 121 $ = 0%
$ 86,512 $ 84,189 $ 2,323 3% 86%
$ = $ = $ =
$ 10,000 $ 12,248 $ (2,248) -18% 10%
$ = $ = $ =
$ 10,000 $ 12,248 $ (2,248) -18%
$ 3,355 $ 3,430 $ (77) -2% 3%
) - ) - ) - (3
$ = $ = $ - 0%
$ = $ = $ - 0%
$ - $ - $ -
$ : $ - s 5
$ 1,009 $ 1,009 $ - 0%
$ 1,009 $ 1,009 $ o 1%
$ = $ - $ -
$ = $ - $ -
$ = $ - $ -
$ = $ - $ -
$ = $ - $ -
$ = $ - $ -
$ 100,875 $ 100,875 $ 0
$ 0 $ 0 $ =
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Certification of the
Florida Engineers Management Corporation
2022-2023

Pursuant to Section 471.038(3)(j)2., Florida Statutes, and the terms of Contract
Number 21-00001 between FEMC and the Department of Business and Professional
Regulation, the Board of Professional Engineers certifies that based on the information
available and reviewed for FEMC’s 2022-2023 fiscal year performance under the
contract, FEMC is complying with the terms of the contract in a manner consistent with
the goals and purposes of the Board and in the best interest of the State.

Dylan Albergo, PE, Chair
Board of Professional Engineers

Date: August 2, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Florida Engineers Management Corporation (the
Corporation) which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Corporation, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the
changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
(Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 through 8 be presented to supplement the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures
of state financial assistance, as required by Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, and the
schedule of findings and questioned costs - state financial assistance projects are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state
financial assistance and the schedule of findings and questioned costs - state financial assistance
projects are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 21, 2023 on our consideration of the Corporation's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Tallahassee, Florida
August 21, 2023



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the annual financial report of the Florida Engineers Management Corporation (the
Corporation) presents management’s discussion and analysis of the Corporation’s financial
performance during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023, and 2022. It should be read in
conjunction with the Corporation’s financial statements immediately following this section.

Background and Funding Information

The Corporation is a nonprofit corporation created by the passage of Chapter 97-312, Laws of
Florida, Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, during the 1997 Florida Legislature. Its purpose is to
provide administrative, investigative, and prosecutorial services to the Florida Board of
Professional Engineers (the Board). Florida Engineers Management Corporation receives funding
from legislative appropriations to the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation
(the Department). The fiscal year is July 1 through June 30.

The Corporation’s Board comprises seven members: five members appointed by the Florida Board
of Professional Engineers who must be registrants in Florida and two appointed by the Secretary
of the Department and who must be laypersons not regulated by the Board.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of management’s discussion, analysis, and financial statements. The
Corporation’s reporting entity consists of one enterprise fund. Therefore, the financial statements
provide information about the Corporation’s overall financial status. The notes provide additional
information essential to an understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

The Corporation’s financial statements include the Statements of Net Position, the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statements of Cash Flows.

» The Statements of Net Position present information on all assets and liabilities of the
Corporation with the difference between the assets and liabilities reported as net position.

» The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present information
on all revenues and expenses of the Corporation and the changes in net position.

» The Statements of Cash Flows present information regarding changes in cash resulting
from cash receipts and cash disbursements during the reporting period.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Financial Highlights

The Corporation is committed to providing outstanding service to applicants, licensees, and the
public while keeping a strong focus on the fiduciary responsibility of excellent budget
management. Management and staff continue to streamline workflow processes through
technological upgrades, allowing for improved application processing and reductions in personnel
and related expenses. To promote professional licensure and help alleviate unlicensed activity, the
Corporation has continued increasing public outreach and education regarding its services. This
has been accomplished through presentations at universities and various professional organizations
in Florida, along with professional publications and maintaining an active presence on social media
platforms.

Financial Analysis
Statements of Net Position

The following schedule provides a summary of the assets, liabilities, and net position of the
Corporation as of June 30, 2023, and 2022:

2023 2022

Assets

Current Assets $ 356,433 $ 423,273

Capital Assets, net 130,693 108,403

Other non-current assets 422,424 544,495
Total Assets $ 909,550 $ 1,076,171
Liabilities

Current Liabilities $ 278,222 $ 483,311

Non-current Liabilities 339,203 441,154

Total Liabilities $ 617,425 3 924,465
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 119,521 108,403

Restricted 172,604 43,303
Total Net Position $ 292,125 $ 151,706

Total assets decreased due to a reduction in cash and accounts receivable. Total liabilities declined
due to a decrease in the reversion amount to be paid to the Department and a reduction in the long-
term lease liability.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The following schedule provides a summary of the revenues, expenses, and changes in net position

for the years ended June 30, 2023, and 2022:

2022

Operating revenues $ 2,170,875

Operating expenses
Other Income

$ 2,168,815
1,978,763
29,952

Excess of revenues over expenses

Reversion to the state of Florida

220,004

(200,718)

Change in net position

Total net position, beginning of year

19,286

132,420

Total net position, end of year $

$ 151,706

Operating Revenues

The Corporation is funded by a line-item legislative appropriation set out in the Department of

Business and Professional Regulation’s annual budget.

Operating Expenses

The excess revenue over expenses of $146,079 is due to continued diligence by management to
minimize operating expenses. Operating expenses of $2,024,796 were 6.73% under budget and
$46,033 more than the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, primarily due to a $36,201 increase in

accrued leave expense.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

The Corporation’s operating revenue and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, focused
on the following major areas:

» The bi-annual Licensure Renewal process began November 1, 2022. Staff assisted in the
renewal process for 40,724 Professional Engineers as of June 30, 2023. The Corporation’s
staff collected and deposited over $813,484 in fees into the State of Florida Board of
Engineering Trust Fund for all engineering disciplines.

> In August, a part-time employee retired, and their duties were absorbed by a current
employee, for a reduction in personnel expenses of over $35,862 for the remaining ten
months of the fiscal year.

» During the past year, staff have been building and testing our extensive Laserfiche
workflows for licensure, accounting, and legal in the cloud. Laserfiche Cloud will benefit
the Corporation by providing browser-based access, which alleviates the need to regularly
update client software, maintain and secure an on-premises server, and will provide access
to additional features unavailable with a self-hosted server. The Corporation should
complete the transition to Laserfiche Cloud within the next couple of months.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

A new four-year contract for the period beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2025, was
signed in June 2021. Grants and aid funds for $2,070,000 and unlicensed activity funds for
$100,875 for the four fiscal years comprised the total annual budget of $2,170,875 for a total four-
year contract of $8,683,500. A fee of $19,200 per fiscal year for a four-year total of $76,800 for
services provided by the contract monitor at the Department is included in the four-year contract.



Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Statements of Net Position

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Deposits

Capital assets, net

Leases, right-of-use assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to Florida Department of Business and Professional
Regulation
Lease liabilities, current
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Lease liabilities, noncurrent
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes.

June 30,

2023 2022
$ 273,299 $ 366,298
4,921 9,642
78.213 47.333
356,433 423,273
11,172 10,136
119,521 108,403
422.424 534.359
553.117 652.898
$ 909,550 $__ 1,076,171
$ 151,410 $ 156,022
24,860 219,918
101.952 107.371
278,222 483,311
339.203 441.154
339,203 441,154
617,425 924,465
119,521 108,403
172.604 43.303
292.125 151,706
$ 909,550 §$__ 1.076.171




Florida Engineers Management Corporation

(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues:

Transfer in- Florida Department of Business and Professional
Regulation

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits
Professional and consulting fees
Occupancy costs

Meeting and travel expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Postage

Repairs and maintenance
Printing and copying
Telephone

Office supplies and expenses
Insurance

Contract monitoring

Dues and subscriptions
Testing services and fees
Employee training

Interest expense

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenues over expenses

Reversion to Florida Department of Business and Professional
Regulation

Other income
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes.

10

Years ended June 30,

2023 2022
2.170.875 2.168.815
2.170.875 2.168.815
1,222,379 1,187,157
346,869 320,360
26,744 76,597
118,748 81,661
144,745 130,538
: 11,964
4,376 4,233
9,490 10,872
18,826 24,760
52,475 50,839
24,099 24,185
19,200 19,200
15,095 15,160
6,500 6,500
10,756 10,287
4,494 4.450
2.024.796 1.978.763
146,079 190,052
(5,660) (200,718)
: 29.952
140,419 19,286
151,706 132,420

$ 292,125 § 151.706



Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from Florida Department of Business and
Professional Regulation
Payments to vendors
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of change in net position to the net cash provided

by operating activities
Change in net position

Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Due to Florida Department of Business and Professional

Regulation
Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended June 30,

2023 2022
$ 2,175,596 $ 2,189,125
(894,918) (752,422)
(1.222.379) _ (1.187.157)
58.299 249.546
(43,928) (70,431)
(107.370) (81.414)
(151.298) (151.845)
(92,999) 97,701
366,298 268.597
$__ 273299 $__ 366298
$ 140,419 S 19,286
144,745 130,538
- 4,906
4,721 (9,642)
(30,880) (750)
(1,036) (2,136)
(4,612) (14,221)
(195.058) 121,565
$___ 58299 $___ 249.546



Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Notes to Financial Statements
Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

The Florida Engineers Management Corporation (the Corporation) is a nonprofit corporation
created by passage of Chapter 97-312, Laws of Florida, Section 471.038, Florida Statutes, during
the 1997 Florida Legislature. Its purpose is to provide administrative, investigative and
prosecutorial services to the Florida Board of Professional Engineers (FBPE) (the Board).
Florida Engineers Management Corporation receives funding from legislative appropriations to
the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation (the Department). The fiscal
year is July 1 through June 30.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The significant accounting
practices and policies are summarized as follows:

Basis of Accounting

The Corporation's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments
though its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).

The Corporation operates as a special purpose government engaged in business-type activities.
The proprietary fund type is applicable to the Corporation, under the governmental reporting
model, and its activities are accounted for as an enterprise fund.

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is on the flow of economic resources including the
determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows,
similar to business enterprises. The Corporation's books are maintained on the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Reporting Entity

The Corporation is a component unit of the State of Florida. The Corporation has no component
units for the years ended June 30, 2023 or 2022.
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Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
New Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes
a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings
of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a
lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The new guidance was
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019; however, early adoption is
permitted. In response to the coronavirus pandemic, GASB issued Statement No. 95,
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which extended this
effective date by 18 months. The Corporation adopted GASB No. 87 as of July 1, 2021.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements and notes are representations of the Corporation’s management who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The accounting policies conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied
in the preparation of the financial statements.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Contributed assets are reported
at fair market value as of the date received. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to seven years. The
Corporation capitalizes all capital assets with a purchase price over $500.
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Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of amounts on hand and amounts in demand deposits with
financial institutions. Deposits with financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor, per FDIC-insured financial
institution. Bank deposits at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Corporation has not
experienced any losses in such accounts.

Accrued Leave

The Corporation's employees are entitled to personal time off (PTO) which combines time off
for personal, vacation, and sick leave. PTO is based on length of employment and other factors.
PTO is accrued when earned. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, a PTO accrual of $126,536 and
$113,049, respectively, is included as a component of accounts payable and accrued expenses in
the statement of net position.

Income Taxes

The Corporation qualifies for exemption from federal income taxes as a governmental entity and
is not required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, Form 990. Therefore,
no provision for income taxes has been recorded.

Operating Revenues - Transfers In

As a component unit of the State of Florida, the fixed portion of the base, annual contract from
the Department is recognized as a transfer-in. Transfers-in also include amounts the Corporation
invoices to the Department for unlicensed activity up to a maximum amount, based on actual
expenses of the activity. Unexpended funds are reverted back to the Department on an annual
basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Restricted Funding

The Corporation receives funding through appropriations allocated to the regulation of
professional engineers from the State of Florida Professional Regulation Trust Fund. It is
restricted for the purposes described in Florida Statutes, Section 471.038.

Subsequent Events

The Corporation has evaluated subsequent events through August 21, 2023, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. During the period from June 30, 2023 to August 21,
2023, the Corporation did not have any material recognizable subsequent events.

2. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represent amounts due from the Department for unlicensed activity. No
valuation allowance has been recorded, as management deems the balances to be collectable.

3. Concentration and Contingency

The Corporation receives all of its revenue from a contract with the Department. In performing
the administrative services under this contract, the Corporation collected and processed
approximately $814,000 and $811,000 of fees and revenues on the Board's behalf during the
years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These amounts were deposited directly into
the Department's trust fund account and are not recognized as revenues of the Corporation.
Therefore, they have not been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.

In June 2021, the Corporation entered into a four year contract beginning July 1, 2021 through
June 30, 2025. Total funding for the contract is $2,170,875 annually and $8,683,500 for the
contract period. The Department's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature. In addition, upon
determination by the Department and the Board, at any time during the term of the contract that
the Corporation no longer operates for the benefit of the Board and in the best interest of the
State, all monies and property held shall revert to the Board or the Department.
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Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Notes to Financial Statements
4. Capital Assets
Capital assets consist of the following:

June 30,2022 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2023

Furniture and equipment $ 69975 $ - $ (252) $ 69,723
Leasehold improvements 58,970 - - 58,970
Computers and software 325,532 43,928 (168,405) 201,055
Leases, right-of-use assets, office space 596,920 - - 596,920
Leases, right-of-use assets, equipment 33.020 - - 33.020

1,084,417 43,928 (168,657) 959,688

Less: Accumulated depreciation and
amortization (441,655) (144.745) (168.657) (417,743)
$__ 642,762 $_ (100.817) $_ (337.314) $__ 541,945

Depreciation and amortization expense was $144,745 and $130,538 for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

5. Retirement Benefits
The Corporation maintains a defined contribution retirement plan established a SEP-IRA for all
eligible employees. The Corporation contributes an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of each

eligible employee's gross quarterly earnings to the Plan on a quarterly basis. Contributions to the
plan for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, were $90,898 and $90,620, respectively.
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Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Notes to Financial Statements
6. Lease Commitments

The Corporation leases office space and equipment under lease agreements expiring at various
dates through September 2027. The leases for office space are cancellable in the event the
Corporation’s program is cancelled or funding is not available. Beginning September 1, 2021 the
Corporation is required to give six months written notice, pay the sum of six months rent upon
notice, and forfeit the security deposit of $8,000 in the event of cancellation. The right-to-use
lease asset for office space and equipment was originally valued at $596,920 and $33,020,
respectively. Accumulated amortization for the right-to-use lease asset for office space and
equipment as of June 30, 2023 is $179,894 and $27,622, respectively. Accumulated amortization
for the right-to-use lease asset for office space and equipment as of June 30, 2022 is $81,770 and
$13,811, respectively. Future minimum lease payable and the net present value of the minimum
lease payments for office space and equipment leases are as follows:

For the year ended
June 30, Principal Interest Debt Service
2024 $ 105,526 $ 3,575 § 109,101
2025 103,318 2,646 105,964
2026 105,535 1,696 107,231
2027 108,174 713 108,887
2028 27.253 21 27.274

$ 449.806 $ 8.651 § 458.457

7. Risk Management

The Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property and
casualty, group health and life, auto and physical damage, cyber-security, and workers'
compensation. Conventional commercial insurance coverage has been purchased from various
independent carriers to insure against such risk and minimize financial exposure to such risks.
The Corporation is not involved in any risk pools with other governmental entities.

17



Other Reports and Supplementary Information



Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards), the financial statements of Florida Engineers Management Corporation (the
Corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the
related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
August 21, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Page Two

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Tallahassee, Florida
August 21, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance for the Major State Project
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General

Board of Directors
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

Report on Compliance for the State Project
Opinion on the State Project

We have audited Florida Engineers Management Corporation's (the Corporation) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Florida Department of
Financial Service’s State Projects Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on the Corporation's state project for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Corporation’s state
project is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its state project for
the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on the State Project

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
(Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Chapter 10.650, Rules of the
Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for the state project. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Corporation's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the

requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Corporation's state project.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Corporation's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the
Auditor General, will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the
Corporation's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the audit
requirements of Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, we:

» exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Corporation's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

» obtain an understanding of the Corporation's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the audit
requirements of Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a state project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Thonas: Honell Fergpism. PA-

Tallahassee, Florida
August 21, 2023
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Florida Engineers Management Coproration
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance

Y ear ended June 30, 2023

CSFA
State Agency and Program Title No. Contract Number Expenditures
State of Florida
Department of Business and Professional Regulation
Direct Program
Florida Engineers Management Corporation (FEMC) 79.001 n/a $ 2,024,796

Note 1 - This Schedule of State Financial Assistance (the Schedule) includes the State grant activity of Florida Engineers Management
Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2023, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this Schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General.

Note 2 - Amounts included on this Schedule include only the expenditure of State Financial Assistance received directly from an awarding
agency. The amounts on the accompanying statements of activities and changes in net assets include additional expenditures associated with
other resources committed by the Corporation for purposes of fulfilling the grant program.

Note 3 - There were no state awards expended in non-cash assistance.

Note 4 - There were no transfers to subrecipients during the fiscal year.

Seereport of independent auditors.
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Florida Engineers Management Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - State Financial Assistance Projects
Y ear ended June 30, 2023

Section | -- Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
State Project
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state projects? Unmodified

Internal control over state projects:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be material weaknesses? No

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General ? No

Identification of state projects:

CFDA Number Name of state project

79.001 Florida Engineers Management Corporation

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $606,069
Auditee qualified aslow risk auditee? Yes

Section Il -- Financial Statement Findings

We noted no matters involving internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we considered to be material
weaknesses, significant deficiencies and/or control deficiencies required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Sandards.

Section |11 -- State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

We noted no matters involving noncompliance that are required to be reported in accordance with Rules of the Auditor General of
the State of Florida, Chapter 10.650.

See report of independent auditors.
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To the Board of Directors

Florida Engineers Management Corporation

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Florida
Engineers Management Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023.
This report summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to
you in your oversight responsibility for the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s
Communication with Those Charged with Governance) require the auditor to promote effective
two-way communication between the auditor and those charged with governance. Consistent with
this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding the financial statement
audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your
responsibility to oversee the financial and related compliance reporting process.

Area

Comments

Our Responsibilities With Regard to
the Financial Statement Audit and
Compliance

Overview of the Planned Scope and
Timing of the Financial Statement
Audit

Our responsibilities under auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America
and Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States have been
described to you in our arrangement letter dated
September 16, 2021. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those
charged with governance of their responsibilities,
which are also described in that letter.

We discussed with members of the Board of
Directors and the Corporation’s management various
matters about which generally accepted auditing
standards require communication. These include
matters concerning two-way communication, our
independence, the audit planning process, the
concept of materiality in planning and executing the
audit, identified significant risks, our approach to
internal control relevant to the audit, and the timing
of the audit.
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Area

Comments

Accounting Policies and Practices

Management’s  Judgments
Accounting Estimates

and

Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used by
the Corporation. The Corporation did not adopt any
significant new accounting policies, nor have there
been any changes in existing significant accounting
policies during the current period. We evaluated the
applicability of GASB Statement No. 96,
Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements and management chose to waive the
adjustment resulting from the implementation due to
it being immaterial to the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

We did not identify any significant accounting
policies in controversial or emerging areas for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant unusual
transactions.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the
preparation of financial statements and are based
upon management’s current judgment. The process
used by management encompasses their knowledge
and experience about past and current events, and
certain  assumptions about future events.
Management has informed us that they used all the
relevant facts available to them at the time to make
the best judgments about accounting estimates, and
we considered this information in the scope of our
audit. Significant accounting estimates reflected in
the Corporation’s June 30, 2023 financial statements
include depreciation related to fixed assets and net
present value of leases using interest rates under
GASB 87.

The Board of Directors may wish to monitor
throughout the year the process used to determine
and record these accounting estimates.
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Area

Comments

Audit Adjustments

Uncorrected Misstatements

Observations About the Audit
Process

There were no audit adjustments that were brought
to the attention of management as a result of audit
procedures.

During the course of our audit, we identified an
uncorrected misstatement that management has
concluded is not material to the financial statements
and the related financial statement disclosures. We
agree with management’s conclusion in that regard.
Uncorrected misstatements or matters underlying
these uncorrected misstatements could potentially
cause future-period financial statements to be
materially misstated, even if we have concluded that
the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the
financial statements under audit. See Exhibit A for a
copy of the representation letter provided to us by
Corporation’s management that includes a
description of the uncorrected misstatement.

Disagreements With Management

We encountered no disagreements with management
over the application of significant accounting
principles, the basis for management’s judgments on
any significant matters, the scope of the audit or
significant disclosures to be included in the financial
statements.

Consultations With Other Accountants

We are not aware of any consultations management
had with other accountants about accounting or
auditing matters.

Significant Issues Discussed With Management

No significant issues arising from the audit were
discussed or were the subject of correspondence with
management.
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Area

Comments

Observations About the Audit

Process (continued)

Shared Responsibilities for
Independence

Significant Difficulties Encountered in

Performing the Audit

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in
dealing with management during the audit. We
received full cooperation and appreciate the
assistance provided by the Corporation’s financial
and accounting personnel.

Difficult or Contentious Matters That Required
Consultation

We did not encounter any significant and difficult or
contentious matters that required consultation
outside the engagement team.

Independence is a joint responsibility and is managed
most effectively when management, board of

directors, and audit firms work together in
considering compliance  with  AICPA and
Government  Accountability  Office  (GAO)

independence rules. For Thomas Howell Ferguson
(THF) to fulfill its professional responsibility to
maintain and monitor independence, management,
the board of directors, and THF each play an
important role.

Our Responsibilities

e AICPA and GAO rules require independence
both of mind and in appearance when
providing audit and other attestation services.
THF is to ensure that the AICPA and GAQO’s
General Requirements for performing non-
attest/nonaudit services are adhered to and
included in all letters of engagement.

e Maintain a system of quality control over
compliance with independence rules and firm
policies.
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Comments

Shared

Responsibilities
Independence (continued)

The Corporation’s Responsibilities

Timely inform THF, before the effective date
of transactions or other business changes, of the
following:

New affiliates, directors, officers, or person
in financial reporting and compliance
oversight roles.

Changes in the reporting entity impacting
affiliates such as subsidiaries, partnerships,
related entities, investments, joint ventures,
component  units,  jointly  governed
organizations.

Provide necessary affiliate information such as
new or updated structure charts, as well as
financial information required to perform
materiality calculations needed for making
affiliate determinations.

Understand and conclude on the permissibility,
prior to the Corporation and its affiliates,
officers, directors, or persons in a decision-
making capacity, engaging in business
relationships with THF.

Not entering into arrangements of nonaudit
services resulting in THF being involved in
making management decisions on behalf of the
Corporation.

Not entering into relationships resulting in
THF, THF covered persons or their close
family members, temporarily or permanently
acting as an officer, director, or person in an
accounting, financial reporting or compliance
oversight role at the Corporation.
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Area

Comments

Internal Control and Compliance
Matters

Significant Written Communications
Between Management and Our Firm

We have separately communicated significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control and compliance findings over financial
reporting identified during our audit of the financial
statements and major awards, as required by
Government Auditing Standards. This
communication is included in the Other Reports
section of the financial statements.

See Exhibit A for a copy of the representation letter
provided to us by the Corporation’s management.
Additionally, see Exhibit B regarding procedures we
performed over information technology risks
associated with financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and
management of the Corporation and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have about this
report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to Florida Engineers

Management Corporation.

Tallahassee, Florida
August 21, 2023

Thds: Honcll Fergpison PA-



2400 Mahan Dr.
Tallahassee, FL 32308
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August 21, 2023

Thomas Howell Ferguson P.A.
2615 Centennial Boulevard, Suite 200
Tallahassee, FL 32308

Exhibit A

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements of
Florida Engineers Management Corporation, (the Corporation) as of and for the years ended June
30, 2023 and 2022 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements
are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief that as of the date of this letter:

Financial Statements

1.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit arrangement letter
dated September 16, 2021, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of
controls to prevent and detect fraud.

The methods, data, and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates
and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or
disclosure that is reasonable in the context of U.S. GAAP, and reflect our judgment based
on our knowledge and experience about past and current events, and our assumptions about
conditions we expect to exist and courses of action we expect to take.

Related-party transactions have been recorded in accordance with the economic
substance of the transaction and appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

Florida Engineers Management Corporation Board Members

SATYA LORY, P.E.
CHAIR

VACANCY
Public Seat

BARNEY T. BisHor Il
5/1/17-4/30/25

ART NORDLINGER, P.E.
11/1/18-10/31/26

11/1/18-10/31/26

SAFIYA BREA, P.E.
VICE CHAIR

ZANA RAYBON
FEMC President

STEPHEN KOWKABANY, P.E.
10/7/15-10/31/23

DR. MARK A. TuMEO, P.E.
2/17/21-2/16/25

11/1/18-10/31/26
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6. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements, and for which U.S. GAAP
requires adjustment or disclosure, have been adjusted or disclosed.

7. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

8. Management has followed applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving and
amending budgets.

9. With respect to maintaining depreciation schedules, drafting the financial statements, and
assessing the impact of new accounting standards services performed in the course of the
audit:

a. We have made all management decisions and performed all management functions;

b. We assigned an appropriate individual to oversee the services;

c. We evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed, and made an
informed judgment on the results of the services performed,

d. We have accepted responsibility for the results of the services; and

e. We have accepted responsibility for all significant judgments and decisions that were
made.

10. The selection and application of accounting policies are appropriate.

11. The following have been properly recorded and/or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Corporation is contingently liable.
b. Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold.

c. Amounts of contractual obligations for construction and purchase of real property or
equipment not included in the liabilities or encumbrances recorded on the books.

d. All other liens or encumbrances on assets or revenues or any assets or revenues which
were pledged as collateral for any liability or which were subordinated in any way.

e. All liabilities that are subordinated to any other actual or possible liabilities of the
Corporation.

f. All leases and material amounts of rental obligations under long-term leases.

g. Authorized but unissued bonds and/or notes.
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h. Risk financing activities.

I. The fair value of investments.

J. Deposits and investment securities categories of risk.

k. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other
arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances, line of credit, or similar
arrangements have been properly disclosed.

I.  Impairment of capital assets.

m. Net positions and fund balance classifications.

n. All material concentrations known to management that are required to be disclosed.
Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or
markets for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances
within the next year.

12. We have no direct or indirect legal or moral obligation for any debt of any organization,
public or private, that is not disclosed in the financial statements.

13.  We have complied with all aspects of laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and
agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
noncompliance.

14.  We have reviewed the GASB Statements effective for the fiscal year ending June 30,

2023, and concluded the implementation of the following Statements did not have a

material impact on the basic financial statements:

a. GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-based Information Technology
Arrangements

15. We have informed you of all uncorrected misstatements.

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, we believe that the effects of the uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by you and summarized below are immaterial, both individually
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements. For purposes of this representation, we
consider items to be material, regardless of their size, if they involve the misstatement or
omission of accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it
probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be
changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement.



Florida Engineers Management Corporation 2400 Mahan Dr.

Page 4

Tallahassee, FL 32308
Phone: (850) 521-0500

Assets Liabilities Net Position Income Expenses
To record the asset
and liability
associated with
SBITA $4,460 $(4,467) - - $7

Information Provided

16. We have provided you with:

17.

18.

19.

20.

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation, and other
matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audits.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the Corporation from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the governing board and committees, or summaries of
actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

It is our responsibility to establish and maintain internal control over financial reporting.
One of the components of an entity’s system of internal control is risk assessment. We
hereby represent that our risk assessment process includes identification and assessment
of risks of material misstatement due to fraud. We have shared with you our fraud risk
assessment, including a description of the risks, our assessment of the magnitude and
likelihood of misstatements arising from those risks, and the controls that we have
designed and implemented in response to those risks.

We have no knowledge of allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
Corporation’s financial statements involving:

a. Management.
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control.

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
Corporation’s financial statements received in communications from employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and
regulations.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of all of the Corporation’s related parties and all the
related-party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

We are aware of no deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, including
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, in the design or operation of internal
controls that could adversely affect the Corporation’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets. In that regard:

a. The Corporation has no significant amounts of idle property and equipment or
property or equipment.

b. The Corporation has no plans or intentions to discontinue the operations of any
activities or programs or to discontinue any significant operations.

c. Provision has been made to reduce applicable assets that have permanently declined
in value to their realizable values.

d. We have reviewed long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held
and used for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances have indicated
that the carrying amount of the assets might not be recoverable and have appropriately
recorded the adjustment.

We are responsible for making the accounting estimates included in the financial
statements. Those estimates reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience
about past and current events and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and
courses of action we expect to take. In that regard, adequate provisions have been made:
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a. Toreduce receivables to their estimated net collectible amounts.

29. There are no:

a. Material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

b. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a
loss contingency. In that regard, we specifically represent that we have not been
designated as, or alleged to be, a "potentially responsible party" by the
Environmental Protection Agency in connection with any environmental
contamination.

c. Other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be
accrued or disclosed.

30. During the course of your audits, you may have accumulated records containing data that
should be reflected in our books and records. All such data have been so reflected.
Accordingly, copies of such records in your possession are no longer needed by us.

Supplementary Information

31. With respect to supplementary information presented in relation to the financial statements
as a whole:

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of such information.

b. We believe such information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, regulatory or contractual requirements,
management’s criteria, or other requirements.

c. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in
the prior period.

d. When supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial
statements, we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the
intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance
of the supplementary information and the auditor’s report thereon.
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Compliance Considerations

In connection with your audit conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we
confirm that management:

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Is responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to the auditee.

Is not aware of any instances of identified and suspected fraud and noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Is responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Acknowledges its responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
controls to prevent and detect fraud.

Has taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy identified or suspected fraud or
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that
the auditor reports.

Has a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

Has identified for the auditor previous audits, attestation engagements and other studies
related to the objectives of the audit and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

Is not aware of any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with respect
to the period under audit.

Has provided views on the auditor’s reported findings, conclusions and recommendations,
as well as management’s planned corrective actions, for the report.

Acknowledges its responsibilities as it relates to non-audit services performed by the
auditor, including that it assumes all management responsibilities; that it oversees the
services by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses
suitable skill, knowledge or experience; that it evaluates the adequacy and results of the
services performed; and that it accepts responsibility for the results of the services.
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In connection with your audit of federal awards conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General and the Department of Financial Services’ State Projects Compliance
Supplement, we confirm:

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Management is responsible for complying, and has complied, with the requirements of
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General and the Department of Financial Services’
State Projects Compliance Supplement

Management is responsible for understanding and complying with the requirements of
laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements related to each of
its state programs.

Management is responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance, and has
designed, implemented and maintained, effective internal control over compliance for state
programs that provides reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing federal awards
in compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the state
financial assistance that could have a material effect on its state programs.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of state
financial assistance, acknowledges and understands its responsibility for the presentation
of the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance in accordance with the Rules
of the Auditor General ; believes the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including
its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Rules of the Auditor
General; asserts that methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those
used in the prior period, or if the methods of measurement or presentation have changed,
the reasons for such changes have been communicated; and is responsible for any
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of
the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance.

Management will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended
users of the schedule no later than the issuance date by the entity of the schedule of
expenditures of state financial assistance and the auditor’s report thereon.

Management has identified and disclosed all of its government programs and related
activities subject to the State of Florida Single Audit Act compliance audit.

Management has identified and disclosed to the auditor the requirements of state statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of state financial assistance that are considered
to have a direct and material effect on each major program.

Management has made available all state financial assistance (including amendments, if
any) and any other correspondence relevant to state programs and related activities that
have taken place with state agencies or pass-through entities.
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51.

52.

53.

54,

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

Management has identified and disclosed to the auditor all amounts questioned and all
known noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements of state
financial assistance or stated that there was no such noncompliance.

Management believes that the auditee has complied with the direct and material
compliance requirements.

Management has made available all documentation related to compliance with the direct
and material compliance requirements, including information related to state program
financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

Management has provided to the auditor its interpretations of any compliance requirements
that are subject to varying interpretations.

Management is aware of no communications from state awarding agencies and pass-
through entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material
compliance requirements, including communications received from the end of the period
covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

There are no findings and related corrective actions taken for previous audits, attestation
engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the objectives of
the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from the end
of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

Management is responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings of the compliance
audit that meets the requirements of the State of Florida Single Audit Act.

Management has provided the auditor with all information on the status of the follow-up
on prior audit findings by state financial awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
including all management decisions.

There are no subsequent events that provide additional evidence with respect to conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period that affect non-compliance during the
reporting period.

Management has disclosed all known noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements occurring subsequent to the period covered by the auditor’s report or stated
that there were no such known instances.

Management has disclosed whether any changes in internal control over compliance or
other factors that might significantly affect the entity’s system of internal control, includin
any corrective action taken by management with regard to significant deficiencies an
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance, have occurred subsequent to the
period covered by the auditor’s report.

The copies of state program financial reports provided to the auditor are true copies of the
reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the federal agency or pass-through
entity, as applicable.
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63. Management has charged costs to state financial assistance in accordance with applicable
cost principles.

64. Mar_ma?_em_ent is responsible for, and has accurately prepared, the summary schedule of prior
audit findings to include all findings required to be included by the State of Florida Single
Audit Act.

65. The reporting package does not contain protected personally identifiable information.

66. Management has accurately completed the appropriate sections of the data collection form.

67. Management has disclosed all contracts or other agreements with service organizations.

68. Management has disclosed to the auditor all communications from service organizations
relating to noncompliance at those organizations.

Florida Engineers Management Corporation

Zana Raybon,
President

Michele Morris
Treasurer



Exhibit B

Board of Directors
Florida Engineers Management Corporation

In November 2022, as part of the June 30, 2023 financial statement audit process, our team
analyzed various aspects of the Corporation’s IT system, including network infrastructure, data,
information security measures, software applications, and internal policies as they relate to risks
associated with financial reporting for the Corporation. The assessment aimed to gain an
understanding of the Corporation's IT environment and its impact on financial data.

Scope of analysis:
The analysis was carried out with a focus on the following key areas:

Network Infrastructure: Evaluating the overall architecture, configuration, and security
controls of your organization's network to identify any weaknesses or potential entry points
for unauthorized access.

Data Security: Analyzing the measures in place to protect financial data for the size of your
entity to ensure it meets with industry best practices.

Software Applications: Assessing the security and login requirements of financial reporting
software applications used within your organization to identify any vulnerabilities that may
be exploited by malicious actors.

Information Security Policies: Reviewing existing policies and procedures related to 1T
security for financial reporting applications to gauge their effectiveness and alignment with
industry standards.

Conclusion:
Based on the analysis performed, we noted no recommendations in the scope areas as outlined
above.

If you require any further assistance or have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out to
us.

Tallahassee, Florida
August 21, 2023
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